
NOTICE is hereby given that the THIRTY EIGHTH ANNUAL 

GENERAL MEETING of the Shareholders of E.I.D.- Parry 

(India) Limited will be held on Tuesday,  the 30th July, 2013 at  

4.00 p.m. at Tamil Isai Sangam, Rajah Annamalai Mandram,  

5, Esplanade Road, Chennai – 600 108  to transact the following 

business:

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Directors’ Report, the 

and Loss Account for the year ended 31st March, 2013 and 

the Report of the Auditors thereon.

Shares for the year 2012 -13.

3. To appoint a Director in the place of Mr. A.Vellayan, who 

himself for re-appointment.

Ordinary 

:

 “RESOLVED that Messrs. 

India, be and they are hereby reappointed as Statutory 

expenses incurred by them”.

SPECIAL BUSINESS

as a Director in respect of whom the Company has received 

:

 “RESOLVED 

appointed a Director of the Company.”  

Special 

 “RESOLVED that in accordance with the provisions of 

of the Company nor the Managing Director(s) of the 

 RESOLVED FURTHER that the Board of Directors be and 

amount to one or more Directors within the limits 

prescribed.

 RESOLVED FURTHER that the aforesaid commission shall 

be exclusive of the fees payable to such Directors for 

thereof.

 RESOLVED FURTHER that consent of the Company be and 

the same is hereby accorded for payment of the aforesaid 

partners of other Directors.

 

 RESOLVED FURTHER that the Board of Directors be and 

of the Company shall remain closed from Tuesday, the 

16th July, 2013 to Tuesday, the 30th July, 2013, both days 

inclusive.

For E.I.D.- Parry (India) Limited

Chennai     SURESH KRISHNAN           

April 30, 2013    Company Secretary

E.I.D.-Parry (India) Limited
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NOTES

proposed for appointment and reappointment, details of their holding of shares in the Company along with the details of 

 

i) Mr.A.Vellayan 

joined the Board in the year 1999. He has 31 years of industrial experience. He has been the Chairman of the Company since 

2006.

 

 He is not related to any Director of the Company.

Directorship

Chairman

Member

Member

Roca Bathroom Products Private Limited - -

Parry Infrastructure Company Private Limited - -

Africa
- -

Murugappa Holdings Limited - -

Director - -

Cholamandalam MS General Insurance Co. 

Limited
- -

- -

- -

Ambadi Investments Private Limited - -

ii) Mr.V.Manickam

Board in January 2013 as an Independent Director of the Company.

 He is not related to any other Director of the Company.

E.I.D.-Parry (India) Limited
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 No. of shares – NIL

Directorship

Director

India Cements Limited - -

Share Transfer Agents, M/s. Karvy Computershare Private Limited.

Central Government.

seven years from the date of transfer to the Company’s unpaid / unclaimed Dividend Account, will be transferred to the Investor 

to forward their claims to the Company’s Registrar and Share Transfer Agents.

amount.

can submit their PAN details to the Company / Registrar and Share Transfer Agents, M/s. Karvy Computershare Private Limited.

www.eidparry.com

nominee details.
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173 of the Companies Act, 1956 sets out all material facts 

  

Mr. V. MANICKAM

the Notes above. 

257 of the Companies Act, 1956 from a member along 

the member to propose at the ensuing Annual General 

Director of the Company and for that purpose to move the 

None of the other Directors is interested or concerned in 

shareholders held on July 28, 2008, approved the payment 

period of 5 years. 

them by various statutes, the members approval is sought 

commencing from 1st April, 2013  in the manner stated in 

 

E.I.D.-Parry (India) Limited

For E.I.D.-Parry (India) Limited

Chennai     SURESH KRISHNAN                 

April  30, 2013    Company Secretary
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225 years

EID Parry



 



Parry represents the enterprise, the pioneering zeal and the strategic vision to strike new paths, 

break boundaries and leave a legacy. Started in 1788, the many business ventures of the company 

 First sugar company in India to manufacture sugar in 1842 and among the earliest sugar

    manufacturers in the world. 

 

 

 First and only sugar manufacturer in India, with a dedicated R&D wing and cane breeding

   have set industry benchmarks in yield and recovery.

 Parrys Pure® is the only sugar brand to be conferred the ‘Super Brand’ status in India.

 ® 
  a pioneering  product of the Company, is an established and patented global brand in bio-

 

    world leader in micro algae technology comprising spirulina and natural beta carotenoids. 

 

   in India.

PIONEERING NEW PATHS





For Parry, sugar is not just a business, but a bond and commitment to the farmer. A 

commitment to enrich life through agriculture and promote ecological sustainability.

Parry’s inclusive, farmer-centric model of business engineering, has converted large tracts of dry

contributed to building roads in villages, broadening canals, digging wells, providing electricity 

and health care to its farming community. 

agriculture include:

 Extending agri-credit and insurance coverage to a large number of small farmers and farm 

labourers. 

 Helping farmers to set up trichogramma centres to breed bio control agents, for containing 

and serving as value-added service hubs.

human health and wellness space.  

INCLUSIVE GROWTH 



   



Integrity, accountability, fairness and ethical standards are an integral part of Parry’s business 

philosophy. Standards that are aligned to the Spirit of the Murugappa Group and driven by the 

Five Lights of integrity, passion, quality, respect and responsibility.  

At Parry, people are the core strength of the Company. Driven by a value-based  team culture 

performance.

The comprehensive system of controls and counter balance measures, ensure seamless 

trust is validated in the numerous awards that the company received during 2012-2013: 

 Best Governed Board in India

 Best Corporate Award under Sugar Category

 Corporate Social Responsibility Award- Best Return-to-Investors 

 Best Overall Corporate Governance, Compliance and Ethics 

 Talent Leadership Strategy for the Future- Best Talent Management Award in HR

 

ETHICAL GOVERNANCE





STRATEGIC VISION

milling technologies - Parry has set new benchmarks in the sugar industry. During the year 

the Company consolidated its leadership in premium quality, customized grades of sugar 

for the pharma and food industries, bagging the ‘Best Supplier Awards’ from global FMCG 

manufacturers. In the retail market, Parrys Pure® held its shelf space with its ‘clean sugar’ 

addressing the health and wellness space is a sunrise sector of the Company. The Company 

has consolidated its global leadership in the organic spirulina segment in the US and European 

addressing cardio-vascular and joint health. While capacity expansions at Oonaiyur kept pace 

Building the ‘Abda’ brand, addressing new crop segments with product variants,  greater market 

Expanding into sunrise sectors: natural, organic, sustainable, in human and plant health - Parry’s 



EID Parry was selected as one of ‘India’s Best Managed 

Boards’ along with HDFC Bank, Dr Reddy’s Lab, Kotak 

Mahindra Bank, Tata Steel Limited and TCS. The award 

Exchange. 

AWARDS & RECOGNITION



Best Talent Management Award

 Talent Leadership Strategy for the Future

Corporate Social Responsibility Award

Return to Investors

Best Overall Corporate Governance, 

             Compliance & Ethics

 Dun & Bradstreet

 ‘Best Corporate Award’

Top Spot in Sugar 

 Commitment to 

 Best HR Strategy 



 

Sugar

OUR  BRANDS



CORPORATE INFORMATION 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

COMPANY SECRETARY

CORPORATE MANAGEMENT TEAM

REGISTERED OFFICE

AUDITORS

BANKERS

INVESTOR CONTACTS 

REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER AGENTS

COMPANY
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ì` 

Gross Income  64,145 1,03,044 1,33,526 1,47,386 1,75,364 2,41,448 

 17,766  35,536  27,447  60,562 

 3,037  2,817  3,287  4,403  5,017  7,370  10,787 

Interest & Tax
 6,082  13,076  14,851  16,822  (2,505)  28,603  11,557  20,050 

Finance costs  753  350  (211)  1,345  2,682  3,857  4,817  6,443  13,668 

Tax
 12,726  14,112  17,033  (3,850)  88,840  24,746  6,740  13,607  36,107 

Tax  1,006  2,300  2,528  4,218  (1,186)  (125)

 4,323  10,426  11,584  12,742  (1,658)  20,528  13,732  33,171 

Net Fixed Assets  31,460  33,322  48,256  84,650  80,876  1,28,652 

Investments  11,011  10,126  11,167  11,736  18,344  48,561  68,282  43,414  68,278  87,110 

Net Current Assets  22,680  33,131  35,616  33,537  26,584  27,561  61,572 #  63,604 # 

Shareholders Funds  32,877  40,850  53,005  50,607 1,14,474 1,21,223 1,34,162 

Borrowings  22,160  18,340  24,880  35,236  58,161  53,853  57,552 

Deferred Tax Liability  4,822  5,076  4,801  7,367  5,112  10,888  13,875  12,564  13,380 

(`)
184 234 54 60 57 113 127 66 70 77

EPS (`) 24.22 58.41 14.28  (1.86) 77.80 23.81 4.58

Dividend on Equity % 75 125 225 25 1,000 500 200 400 600

# Includes long term loans and advances and excludes current investments and short term borrowings.

Notes : -

2. The equity shares of ` `

3. The Parryware Division was transferred on March 1,2006 to Parryware Glamourooms Private Ltd, a wholly owned subsidiary.

5. The equity shares of ` `

2 IMITED 



DIRECTORS’ REPORT

ended 31st March, 2013.

The performance highlights of the company for the year 

are summarized below:

FINANCIAL RESULTS 

ì` in lakh

Total Income 1,71,217

60,562 27,447

Less : Interest 13,668 6,443

10,787

36,107 13,607

Less: Provision for Tax :

- Current 750

(750)

- Deferred (125)

33,171 13,732

Add : Surplus brought forward 34,164  

Amount available for 

APPROPRIATIONS

Transfer to General Reserve 35,000 1,400

Transfer to Debenture 
1,250 1,583

Dividend on Equity Capital :

 Interim dividend paid 10,431

 

 (Net)
- -

Surplus carried to Balance 

Sheet
24,456

TOTAL

PERFORMANCE

The Company posted an all-round improved performance 

with an impressive top line growth and earnings 

backdrop of the extremely challenging business context 

This year’s performance includes Units of Haliyal and 

Sankili of Parrys Sugar Industries Limited (PSIL), which 

were merged with the company as a result of the 

Scheme of Demerger approved by the Courts.

The Company recorded revenue of `

(including other income of `

ended 31st March, 2013 as compared to ` 1,71,217 lakh 

in the previous year 2011-12. 

Other income for the year was `

bonus debenture of ` 26,573 lakh) as against  

` 17,038 lakh in 2011-12. The dividend income for 

the year was ` 32,182 lakh (including the bonus 

debenture of ` 26,573 lakh) against ` 12,561 lakh in  

2011-12. Interest income earned during the year 

was ` 3,347 lakh as against ` 2,247 lakh in 2011-12.

` 60,562 lakh 

 

` 27,447 lakh. Performance of sugar by-product division 

contributed towards EBIDTA during the year. 

Sugar division‘s sales increased from ` 1,43,782 lakh 

in 2011-12 to ` 1,87,888 Lakh in 2012-13 driven by 

increased Sugar and Alcohol sales.

` 7,321 Lakh as against ` 7,628 Lakh in 2011-12.

 

` 5,731 Lakh as against `

BUSINESS SEGMENTS

SUGAR

The Company, along with its subsidiaries, has nine sugar 

plants spread across South India of which four are in 

Tamil Nadu, one in Puducherry, three in Karnataka and 

one in Andhra Pradesh. The company has a sugarcane 

capacity of 146 MW across its sugar mills. The integrated 

The Company crushed 65 lakh MT of sugar cane during 

the demerger from PSIL. The Company produced  

to increased usage of mechanical harvesters 

Annual Report 2012 - 13  



thereby reducing the dependence on manual labour, 

4,04,841 MT during the previous year. The company also 

the previous year.

POWER

all of the six cogen plants. While most of the power 

plants, the surplus power was sold to TNEB and other 

merchant power purchasers.

compared to 5,243 MW in the previous year 

(including Haliyal and Sankili). The company exported 

4,100 MW of power during the year as against  

3,427 MW in the previous year. 

DISTILLERY

over 64% over the previous year on account of greater 

sugar division.

BIO PRODUCTS

 

` 7,321 lakh in 2012-13 as compared to ` 7,628 lakh of 

Revenue. The drop in turnover was due to lower 

key markets. PBIT for the year was however higher at 

` 1,557 lakh against ` 1,305 lakh in 2011-12. Sale of 

Technical to USA achieved an impressive growth of 25% 

 

10,141 Kgs, the highest ever in a year.

` 5,731 lakh 

the Company’s Revenue. About 76% of this represents 

exports.

grown at 41% over the previous year. During the year, 

process of Astaxanthin, a carotenoid extracted from 

Haematococcus pluvialis, a micro algae, by producing 

5,135 kgs of biomass (1.5% Carotenoid equivalent). 

acceptance of the OTC products, considering that the 

endorsement.

 

DIVIDEND

During the year, the Company had paid 600% interim 

dividend (` 6 per equity share of ` 1 each) in February, 

for the year ended March 31, 2013.

CORPORATE DEVELOPMENTS 

ACQUISITION OF EQUITY SHARES FROM CARGILL ASIA 

PACIFIC HOLDINGS PTE LIMITED IN SILKROAD SUGAR 

PRIVATE LIMITED

The Company entered into a Share Purchase Agreement 

equity shares of `

Holdings Pte Ltd. Consequent to the above purchase of 

equity shares, the Company’s holding in Silkroad Sugar 

Company’s subsidiary.

SUGAR UNDERTAKINGS OF PARRYS SUGAR INDUSTRIES 

Pursuant to the scheme of approval by the High Courts 

of Karnataka and Madras, two units of Parrys Sugar 

Industries Limited (PSIL) namely Haliyal unit and Sankili 

unit got merged with E.I.D.-Parry (India) Limited with 

equity shareholders of Parrys Sugar Industries Limited 

pursuant to the Scheme of Arrangement (Demerger) 

Limited (NSE) and Bombay Stock Exchange Limited (BSE).

INVESTMENTS

an amount of ` 50 Crore in the Equity Share Capital of 

Sadashiva Sugars Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary, by 

IMITED 



an amount of `

Preference Shares of `  

loan.

EMPLOYEE STOCK OPTION SCHEME

Scheme’) of the Company and based on the approval of 

granted up to 31st March, 2013 and other disclosures as 

set out in the Annexure to this Report.

regard.

CREDIT RATING

short term borrowing.

SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

the livelihood enhancement and for health and hygiene 

awareness in the rural community in which it operates. 

of environment through various water and social 

SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES 

Coromandel achieved a revenue of ` 8,62,727 lakh 

`

recommended a dividend of ` 4.50 per share (450%) for 

the year ended 31st March, 2013.

The Company recorded revenues of ` 10,084 lakh for 

`

The Company recorded revenues of ` 12,206 lakh for 

 

` 87 lakh. Net loss for the period was ` 3,004 lakh.

The revenue for the year was ` 311 lakh. During the 

year ended 31st March, 2013 the company made a loss 

before tax of ` 6,580 lakh.

During the year under review the company earned 

an income of `  

`

` 368 lakh.

Parry America Inc, the 100% subsidiary based in US, 

reported an income of US$ 7,537 thousand for the 

 

US$ 361 thousand.

The revenue for the year was `

year ended 31st March, 2013 the company made a loss 

before tax of ` 375 Lakh.

The Company during the year ended 31st March 2013, 

earned an income of `

` 14 lakh. 

During the year ended 31st March, 2013 the Company 

earned an income of `

` 2 lakh. 

This overseas Subsidiary, during the year ended 31st 

5  Annual Report 2012 - 13  



SUBSIDIARY ACCOUNTS

statements in respect of all the Subsidiary Companies 

for the year ended 31st March, 2013.

The annual accounts of the subsidiary companies and 

to shareholders of the holding and subsidiary companies 

annual accounts of the subsidiary companies will also be 

companies concerned during working hours upto the 

details of accounts of subsidiaries will be furnished to 

any shareholder on demand.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Consolidated Financial Statements have been 

prepared by the Company in accordance with the 

 

of India and the same together with Auditors’ Report 

thereon form part of the Annual Report.

DIRECTORS

himself for re-appointment.  Mr. R A Savoor, Director 

Mr. Ravindra S Singhvi, Managing Director, resigned 

him.

Director of the Company. 

 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

the Stock Exchanges, a Management Discussion and 

Analysis Report, Corporate Governance Report and 

of Corporate Governance are made a part of the Annual 

Report. 

CEO/CFO CERTIFICATION

Mr. P. Gopalakrishnan, Manager appointed under 

TRANSFER TO THE INVESTOR EDUCATION AND 

PROTECTION FUND

an amount of ` 20.74 lakh being unclaimed dividend of 

2004-05 was transferred during the year to the Investor 

Central Government.

DEPOSITS

Other than the deposits that were transferred to the 

no other deposits due for repayment on or before 

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT 

knowledge and belief :

 

 

been followed; 

 

and applied consistently and such judgements and 

been made so as to give a true and fair view of the 

that period;  

IMITED 



 the 

accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 

To ensure this, the Company has established internal 

control systems, consistent with its size and nature of 

should be recognised. These systems are reviewed and 

updated on an ongoing basis. Periodic internal audits 

are conducted to provide reasonable assurance of 

meets at regular intervals to review the internal audit 

 Proper systems are in place to ensure compliance of all 

laws applicable to the Company;

 

concern basis.

AUDITORS

for re-appointment. 

Sells, Chartered Accountants, Chennai be re-appointed as 

COST AUDITOR

Mr. D Narayanan, Cost Accountant, who was appointed as 

the following cost audit reports to Central Government 

1. Sugar 28.02.2013 31.01.2013

2. 28.02.2013 31.01.2013

3. Industrial 

Alcohol
28.02.2013 31.01.2013

4. Neem based 
28.02.2013 31.01.2013

year ended 31.03.2012 upto 28th February, 2013 or 180 

is later.

the due date of 28th February, 2013 as per The Companies 

The Company received the approval of the Central 

2013.

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

-

the secretarial audit and the report has been reviewed by 

the Board.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

of employees are set out in the Annexure to the Directors’ 

Report.

FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Report contains forward-looking statements that 

forward-looking statements, whether as a result of new 

from those expressed or implied in such forward-looking 

reliance on these forward-looking statements that speak 

only as of their dates. This report should be read in 

and the notes thereto.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 

The Directors thank the customers, suppliers, farmers, 

made by the employees to the Company’s progress during 

the year under review.

   On behalf of the Board

 

April 30, 2013 Chairman 
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 31.08.2007 18,58,200 

 2,32,400

 24.01.2008  4,60,600

 24.04.2008  1,52,200

 28.07.2008  1,30,000

 3,87,000

1,13,600 

 47,800

 28.01.2011  3,66,300

27.07.2011 1,15,000

24.10.2011

(b) (i)  Pricing Formula : The pricing formula, as approved by the shareholders of the 

Company, is the latest available closing price of the equity 

shares on the stock exchange where there is highest trading 

of ` 2 each.

of ` 1 each.

31.08.2007

` 64.80 ` 75.70

24.01.2008

`

24.04.2008

`  103.60

28.07.2008

` ` 106.30

` `

28.01.2011

` 225.15

`

27.07.2011

`

24.10.2011

`

20,02,460

17,00,658

(e) Total number of Shares arising as a result of 17,00,658

the ESOP Scheme-2007 has been increased from three years 

year 2012-13)

`

6,40,342

IMITED 



i) Senior Managerial Personnel As provided below -

85,200

3. Mr.Suresh Krishnan (Company Secretary) 18,800

ii) Any other employee who received a grant in any 1. Mr.D.Kumaraswamy 1,83,200

2. Mr. T.Kannan

3. Mr.G.Madhavan 65,000

1,13,600

5. Mr.P.Nagarajan 65,000

6. Mr.K.E.Ranganathan 3,87,000

7. Mr.K.Raghunandan 2,58,200

8. Mr.Ravindra Raju D.S. 53,100

10. Mr.A.Sridhar

11. Mr.N.Senthilkumar 20,700

20,700

13. Mr.N.Ramakrishnan 20,700

13,800

15. Dr.S.Balaji 23,000

16. Mr.Rajiv Yagnik 23,000

17. Mr.S.Radhakrishnan 23,000

18. Mr.Tyron Doll 23,000

23,000

20. Mr.M.Ramamoorthy

21. Mr.M.Balaji 24,200

23. Mr.S.Rangaprasad

 

during any one year, equal to or exceeding 1% of 

the issued capital (excluding outstanding warrants 

grant.

None

(k) Diluted Earnings Per Share (EPS) pursuant to 

‘Earnings Per Share’

`

cost
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cost so computed at (i) above and the employee 

` 175 lakh

EPS of the Company the fair value method been adopted is presented below:

`

Net Income

As reported

33,171

Nil

(Black Scholes model)

175

Adjusted Net Income

` `

As reported

As adjusted

(m) Weighted average exercise prices and weighted 

whose exercise price either equals or exceeds or is 

less than the market price of the stock

(Exercise Price - EP)

(Market Price - MP)

`

 

`

EP > MP 234.10 88.33

EP = MP - -

EP < MP 77.53 27.37

(i) Risk-free interest rate     :    8%

(ii) Expected life                   :   

       tranches  I to III             :    3  years

       tranche IX                       :    4 years

       tranche X                        :    4 years, 2 years

       tranche XI                       :    4 years

       tranche  XII                    :     4 years, 1 year

       tranches  I to III             :    0.5264  

       tranche IX                       :     0.5088

       tranche  XI                      :     0.4856

       tranche  XII                     :     0.4672 & 0.3046

(iv)   Expected dividends     :     400 %  

IMITED 



evaporator scheme, waste heat recovery, use of 

Direct contact heaters, use of non-condensable gases 

on cane.

replaced by single higher capacity Pump  

1. Planetary gear box was provided for Crystalliser which 

resulted in the savings of 86,400 units per annum.

Undertaken steam saving measures like

1. PHE for a Centrifugal washing system using Exhaust 

3. Hot water for Transient heater.

2. 1st body vapour provided in place of exhaust steam 

for C-massecuite transient heaters.

1. A new 2 Roller mill with pressure feeders was installed 

as the last mill. This resulted in Bagasse moisture 

600 Hp.

`

`

I 31-08-2007 64.80

II 75.70

III 24-01-2008

24-04-2008 103.60

28-07-2008

106.30

IX 28-01-2011 225.15

X

XI 27-07-2011

XII 24.10.2011
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2. Old 2 speed batch centrifugal machine replaced by 

heater wash water system, sugar melter and 

condensate and vapour.

increase the Water temperature.

process pumps and cooling tower Fans has been 

2. Pumps mechanical seal cooling water recycle system 

water.

to 50 mtrs length replaced by 1,000 mm dia line. This 

has reduced the pressure drop to 0.4 Kg.sqcm as 

against 0.8 Kg.sqcm.

4o to 5o Celsius by controlling vapour loss. 

one more pan in 3rd vapour boiling helped to reduce 

spent wash evaporator for steam saving and 

cooling of condensate temperature with plate type 

heat exchangers were introduced to heat raw and 

0.03%.

body vapour is being used.

3. Introduced a Plate type Heat exchanger to raise the 

temperature of vapour condensate from 850c to 

from exhaust condensate.

4. Planetary gears for 3 number of Crystallisers. Earlier 

there was a drive of 15 HP and currently running with 

3 HP.

blower. Power saving of 15%.

increased from 15 tons to 20 tons which resulted in 

by 0.01 % .

1. Chiller compressor is replaced by Screw compressor 

bringing down to acceptable limits and thereby 

in series and have been split into two parallel and 

thereby Feed Temp is increased and furnace oil saved 

5. Increased solvent condensing capacity area and 

IMITED 



1. APFC with Harmonic Reactor was installed to save  

INNOVATION

1. Reducing the Pol % FC from 1.8 to 1.6 by 

2. Reducing the FM purity from 32 to 31 by doing 

colour.

1. RO water used in place of DM water for ENA 

cleaning.

steam.

2. Usage of plate type heat exchanger for cooling 

water in molasses tank cooling.

3. Using anaerobic process of treatment for 

water.  Final Molasses purity reduced by 0.03 

units.

3. Arrangement of online CIP in ENA condenser 

column.

in separate manner. All the 3 process are done 

2 replaced with 

higher capacity of 20m2.
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(i) Through Emergency Diesel Generator

Units (KWH) 23,00,542

Units per litre of Diesel oil 3 3

Cost per unit (`) 18 14

(ii) Generated through Steam turbine

Out of Own bagasse (KWH) 65,84,62,012

Out of outside fuel (KWH)

752 566

` in lakh) 300

`)

HSD:

653 577

Total amount (` in lakh) 318 246

Rate per KL (`) 48,760 42,545

301 313

On behalf of the Board

April 30, 2013                              Chairman

ì` in lakh

(a) Earnings

(b) Outgo 

- towards Expenditure

- towards Dividend

808

82

A

Units (KWH)

Total amount (` in lakh) 524

Rate per unit (`) 10 7

IMITED 



AGGREGATING NOT LESS THAN `

`

Ravindra S Singhvi* 

(55)

Managing Director B.Com, FCA, 

FCS, LLB (32)

03.12.2010 Indo Rama 

(India) Limited

Sajiv K Menon (53) Business Head – Bio & 73,00,743 B.Tech & 

PGDM (31)

01.04.2012 Tube 

Investments of 

India Limited

President & Head 

– Management 

Development Centre

68,68,683 M.Sc., MBA 

(23)

Infosys 

Technologies 

Limited

AGGREGATING NOT LESS THAN `

`

Raghunandan K (55) 72,67,520 MS Chem., 

Engg (32)

IEL Limited

Ranganathan K E (50) B.Com, ACA., 

Limited

1.  The nature of employment of all employees above is contractual.

expenses where the actual amount of expenditure cannot be ascertained with reasonable accuracy, and in such 

is done for the Company as a whole only.

4.  None of the employees is related to any Director of the Company.

 On behalf of the Board

April 30, 2013   Chairman
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E.I.D.-Parry (India) Limited is part of the Chennai-based 

USD 4.43 billion Murugappa Group. The company is the 

largest sugar producer in South India and is one of the 

E.I.D.-Parry, including its subsidiary companies, has a 

year of global surplus (8.5 mln tonnes) largely driven 

5

Source: ISO, Feb 2013 Update

 Puducherry

Pradesh

across its mills. The company also has interests in the 

in Kakinada, Andhra Pradesh through its subsidiary  

Silkroad Sugar Private Ltd. 

in China, Mexico and USA. While on the other hand, 

countries in EU, India and Thailand are expected 

from beet will see a decline as against cane share 

which will increase to 78.8% of total world sugar 

aaaaa

aa
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ISO forecasts indicate 6.3% growth in world fuel ethanol 

output is expected to be 51.5 bln litres. Brazil’s move to 

increase ethanol blending to 25% from the current 20% 

will give a boost to investments in the country’s ethanol 

ethanol expected from the record cane crop this season. 

the splits between ethanol and sugar in Brazil to lean 

harvest this season, the improved terms for ethanol is 

on sugar exports and 3.4 mln MT was exported from 

the country.

been produced in the period from October 2012 

to March 2013. The fall is on account of drought 

and North Karnataka. Exports could be limited during 

carry high closing stock levels over 8 mln MT.

Karnataka, Andhra Pradesh and Tamilnadu, this 

Maharashtra for instance, the shortage of water in 

previous year. However given high opening stock 

% 

PRODUCTION 174.8 180.4 3%

CONSUMPTION 168.3 171.8 2%

6.5 8.6 32%

IMPORT DEMAND 53.2 50.7 -5%

EXPORT 54.0 0%

END STOCKS 64.3 8%

CONSUMPTION 

RATIO (%)

38% 41%

Source: ISO, Feb 2013 Update

Sugar prices have been on a declining trend since 

early 2011. Currently, high stock levels have depressed 

about 28% due to global surpluses. Raw sugar futures 

indicate prices to remain subdued and see a slow revival 

only by end of the calendar year 2013.
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Central Government increased the FRP (Fair and 

farmers are legally guaranteed, by 24% to ` 210 per 

was at `

State Advised cane Price (SAP) is ` 235 per quintal 

including `

recovery. Andhra SAP is at `

the prices in Karnataka are in the range of ` 220 to  

` 

has increased to ` 280 per quintal. Hence overall cost of 

in the country. 

Going forward, given removal of levy and release quotas, 

then stabilize in the forthcoming quarters.

Source: ISMA

OPENING STOCK 5.5 6.5 8.4

PRODUCTION 26.3 24.6 22-23

CONSUMPTION 22.0 22.6 23.2

DEFICIT

4.3 2.0 (1.2) - 0.2

IMPORTS - -

NAEXPORTS 3.4 -

END STOCKS 6.5 8.4

Sugar prices in FY 2012-13 saw a steep-jump to the levels 

of about ` 3,000 per quintal from ` 2,700 per quintal in 

FY 2011-12. This was mainly on accord of record sugar 

exports of 3.4 Mln MT from the country in early 2012. 

to September 2012 when prices were in the range of  

` 3,200 - to ` 3,400 per quintal. Since October 2012, 

with the commencement of the new sugar season, 

there has been a steady decline to `  

Indian sugar industry was earlier regulated in both sides 

Government on free sale releases, levy and import-

on sugarcane procurement prices and policies. 

presented a road-map for 

phased decontrol of the sugar industry in October 2012. 

The following are the key highlights from the report: 

 

State Governments to buy sugar from the open 

market to supply to PDS

Central Government to provide annual 

subsidy which will be distributed among state 

market 

 Free import mechanism.

 Uniform, revenue-linked sugarcane price

Industry to pay 70% of value of sugar and by-

products realized to farmers

Actual payment to happen in 2-stages:

and above FRP to be paid based on revenue 

achieved

State advised prices to be removed

 

with minimum distance criteria

`

12-13 Avg.

(3174)

Source: NCDEX
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has been removed for the next two years.  Also, non-levy 

sugar release mechanisms have been abolished. These 

get implemented over the coming years, in a calibrated 

and phased manner. 

to rise to 750 Mln Litres in 2012-2013 on the basis of 

the Government’s new ethanol policy. The CCEA has 

2012 in 13 states where an E-5 program was already 

in place. The scheme is expected to be rolled out 

scrapped the regulated procurement price for ethanol of  

` 27 per litre and instead allowed prices to be determined 

by the market. The total requirement of the blending 

Companies (OMC’s) have already opened tenders for 

March 2013. The tendering process is not yet complete 

and orders are expected to be placed in due course.

mills across Tamilnadu, Puducherry, Andhra Pradesh 

Sivaganga, Tamilnadu. Subsequent to the demerger 

of two units from Parrys Sugar Industries Limited 

(PSIL) in Sankili (Andhra Pradesh) and Haliyal 

(Karnataka), these factories now form a part of EID 

The sugar division achieved a crushing of 65 lakh 

MT of sugarcane in FY 2012-13 driven by strong 

Puducherry achieved 53 lakh MT of crushing, 11% 

increase over last year’s 48 lakh MT. Haliyal and 

Sankili together crushed 12 lakh MT of cane. Overall 

Overall, the sugar division has achieved a turnover of 

`  

`

well. 

TN & PDY

Cane Crushed (Lakh MT) 53.25 48.02 5.27 6.67 65.18 48.02

Recovery (%)

Sugar Produced (MT) 4,80,171 57,413 6,01,381

Power Generated (Lakh Units) 5,275 5,243 570 6,534 5,243

Alcohol Produced (Lakh Litres) 468 84 102 654

ì` in lakh

Revenue 13,064 20,186 11,508 1,87,888 1,43,782

EBITDA 1,142 7,637 6,750 7,083 15,862 5,800
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#2, #3).

EID cane teams empowered with Netbooks to 

 

 

are used by EID cane teams to train the farmers in 

are given based on yields achieved from the plot  

(Picture #1).

Power and water are two key requirements for sugarcane. 

the standing crop is lacking. EID has adopted various 

 Demo units of tractor and alternator for alternate 

power.

 

to supplement the EB power.

 Financial assistance for well deepening, new bore 

wells and wells.

In a nutshell, it is our endeavor to develop a sustainable 

cane ecosystem including the farmers, company and 

agricultural entrepreneurs which is geared towards 

mutual prosperity. 

EID sugar division in Tamilnadu & Puducherry has 

more than 1,00,000 farmers. In EID, cane development 

themes:-

and yield.

management.

3. Providing best-in-class services for cane payment 

and grievance handling.

Select schemes are detailed below:-

 

reduce dependence on farm labour.

Agri-entrepreneurs have been developed for 

providing mechanical harvester services to 

 Yield improvement: Encouraging farmers to plant 

and micronutrients at subsidised rates.
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5
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throughput and the company has plans to increase 

aimed at high value customer segments.

consultants, building a comprehensive training and 

awareness program are being undertaken company 

wide. EID strives to be an environmentally sustainable 

In the Indian sugar market, about 75% of sugar is 

consumed directly through retail and PDS networks. 

EID has a similar thread with 3 main channels to market 

opportunity in exports and EID was one of the largest 

sugar exporters taking advantage of its factories being 

close to major ports in the country. Going forward, 

exports are likely to be limited in 2013-14 given the 

depression in global sugar prices. 

vendor for leading players across food, bakery, beverage 

and improve the quality, safety standards to comply 

Pharmacopoeia and European Pharmacopoeia. 

introduce branded sugar in the retail market in India 

under the Parry’s brand in the year 2006. There are 

segments of the market:

 

 

customers

 

in the year to establish a strong brand connect with 

consumers. EID also caters to private label customers 

such as big retail chains for their home brands. The 

4 southern states of Tamilnadu, Kerala, Karnataka and 

Andhra Pradesh. 

R&D

shown superior performance in All India Coordinated 

major sugarcane diseases and pests in our command 

area.  The advanced technology has been disseminated 

year 2013-14.

In - house R&D expenses incurred at Approved Center

ì` in lakh

Capital 

Expenditure
10 15

Revenue 

Expenditure
360 327

In December 2012, EID bought the stake of its joint 

Silkroad Sugar Private Limited and with this, its equity 

below:

 

availability for the company. Availability of water and 

cycle, increase in support price, lower requirement 

 

22 IMITED 



to facilitate well deepening bore well etc. 

 

 

increase in cane state advised prices result in spread 

company. 

The division registered revenue of ` 7,321 lakh in  

of total export Aza sales for the year 2012-13. The 

witnessed a growth of 16% over last year.

South West Monsoon and North East Monsoon. 

in West Bengal and Karnataka while Tamilnadu was 

recorded a growth of 44% over 2011-12 in West and 

18% in South while it dropped by 267% in East as a 

restricted supplies apart from a weak monsoon. In 

the non-aza product category, Abda® and its variants 

sales achieved 75% of last year level due to failure 

of rice crop in South and East. The impact was partly 

sugar cane and vegetables. 

Revenue for the year was ` 7,321 lakh as compared 

to ` 7,628 lakh of previous year. PBIT for the year was  

` 1,557 lakh against ` 1,305 lakh in 2011-12.

ì` in lakh

Revenue 5,833 7,628 7,321

EBITDA 1,328 1,488 1,678

PBIT 1,151 1,305 1,557

grow at a 12% CAGR from US$ 2.1 billion in 2012 to  

to grow in commercial agriculture segment besides 

greenhouse, indoor gardens and consumer garden 

is gaining momentum due to pressure from produce 

marketers for clean vegetables and fruits.  Most of the 

– safe to eat produce comprising organic and no residue 

products.  This has encouraged growers to give more 

focus to produce residue-free crop to gain higher price 

for their produce. 

Central American Markets are being seen as agriculture 

hubs for export of produce to US market. The growers 

exported to US market. Brazil is growing as a major 

organic producer, exporter and consumer due to the 

country’s good economic growth. 

opportunity for natural products. Government 

from Government agencies to integrate natural with 
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in Kgs

(Technical – 100% basis)

2,476 776

Exports 4,301 5,240 6,076

The regulators in developed countries are enforcing strict 

residue policy in the agricultural produce which will pave 

way for use of safe chemicals in agriculture. In most of 

the countries, the regulators have developed new set of 

The consumers are becoming increasingly conscious 

for purchase of quality products from the market place. 

This awareness will spur the usage of Bio products in the 

days to come.  

There is uncertainty in the Indian agri sector with weak 

depend on the monsoon in the coming year for the 

from Government agencies to integrate natural with 

and extended spray intervals that eventually result in 

Parrys Bio’s mission is to emerge as a leading eco-friendly 

agri input company providing safe and sustainable crop 

presence by maintaining leadership on Aza based 

products through market expansion, product deliveries 

and IPR moving up the value chain through improved 

direct market access, expanding to new markets, new 

detailed below:

 Neem seed business is 

an unorganized market and procurement at a viable 

price is a concern. We have been expanding our 

command area for sourcing to reduce dependence 

on seed areas in Tamil Nadu and working in close 

keep prices under check.

 Sales exposure to exports brings the 

taking forward forex cover.

` 5,731 lakh 

of the company’s revenue. About 76% of this represents 

the year had grown at 41% over the previous year.

The Company produces organic spirulina complying 

with leading organic standards - USDA NOP, Naturland 

ISO 14001, ISO 22000 - Food Safety, Kosher and Halal) 

GRAS (Generally Recognized As Safe) status in the 

foods and beverages. During the year, the Company 

Astaxanthin, a carotenoid extracted from 

pluvialis, micro algae, by producing 5,135 kgs of biomass 

(1.5% carotenoid equivalent). 

The Company has taken various steps to create 

consumer awareness for its OTC product range through 

awareness of the OTC products, considering that 

through the ethical route – Tamilnadu, Andhra Pradesh 

and Maharashtra. 
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Revenue for the year was ` 5,731 lakh as compared 

to `  

(` 143) lakh against (` 100) lakh in 2011-12.

ì` in lakh

Revenue 5731

EBITDA 77 130 113

PBIT (100) (143)

Global Business Intelligence (GBI) Research’s 

to 2010. They project the market will swell to about  

market in India is likely to double to about US$ 2.8 billion 

from the present level of US$ 1.4 billion by 2015.

Your company is moving towards increasing its focus 

and moving up the value chain by launch of formulated 

products backed with science. The company has also 

enhanced the Phycocyanin content in Spirulina to 

food colour industry as an economic source for natural 

detailed below:

 

 Scarcity of water may have 

increasing bore well water availability through high 

sites. 

 

forward forex cover.

ì` in lakh

Sugar

13,064

20,186 11,508

7,321 7,628

5,731

Others 408

income

 

` 1,56,138 Lakh in the year 2011-12 to ` 2,01,348 Lakh 

in the year 2012-13. The increment was the result of the 

following:

 Growth in Sugar division‘s sales from  

` 1,43,782 lakh to ` 1,87,888 Lakh in 2012-13 

mainly driven by increased power export, alcohol 

sales and merger of Haliyal & Sankili units with EID’s 

sugar business.

  

` ` 5,731 lakh in 2012-13. 

Other income for the year was `

bonus debentures of ` 26,573 lakh) as against ` 17,038 

lakh in the year 2011-12. The dividend income for the year 

was ` 32,182 lakh (including the bonus debentures of  

`

against ̀  12,561 Lakh in 2011-12. Interest income earned 

during the year was ̀  3,347 Lakh as against ̀  2,247 lakh in  

2011-12.
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EBIDTA

`

over previous year’s ̀

of Sugar division and increase in dividend income have 

largely contributed to the increase in EBIDTA.

EBIT

EBIT for the year 2012-13 was `  

` 20,050 lakh of 2011-12, up by 148%.

 

` 13,668 Lakh for the year 2012-13 of which EID  

(excluding Haliyal & Sankili) was ` 8,037 lakh as  

compared to ` 6,443 Lakh for the year 2011-12. 

Term loan interest was ` 8,827 lakh as against  

` 3,016 lakh in 2011-12. Other Interest cost was 

` 4,841 lakh compared to cost of ` 3,427 lakh in  

2011-12.

` 10,787 lakh for the year 2012-13, 

as compared to `

increase is mainly due to Haliyal and Sankili Units being 

added during the year 2012-13.

PAT

PAT for the year 2012-13 stood at ̀  33,171 lakh as against 

` 13,732 lakh of previous year. This represents 17% and 

The Networth as on 31st March 2013 was  

`  

` 526 lakh) as against ` 1,21,223 Lakh (net of 

` 540 lakh) in  

the year and the premium received on issue of 

shares under ESOP. During the year, 2,65,810 Equity 

shares were issued to the employees on exercise of 

 

` 188 lakh as against ` 360 lakh in 2011-12. Further, the 

Company has issued 18,38,578 equity shares of `

` 18.38 lakh to the shareholders 

of  the demerged company other than the company in 

`

up, for every nineteen equity shares of `

in the Demerged Company. Hence, the total number 

of outstanding equity shares as on 31st March, 2013  

was 17,57,66,864.

Goodwill of ` 12,542 lakh arising on merger of Sankili 

& Haliyal units with EID was adjusted against capital 

reserve and general reserve for ` 1,348 lakh and  

`

 

for ` 1,250 lakh.

The total loan funds of the Company (excluding 

increased by 41% from ` 88,522 lakh in  

2011-12 to `

outstanding of Haliyal and Sankili Units of ` 

the total outstanding borrowings of the Company stands  

at ` 1,83,358 lakh. 

Debentures of `  

` 16,000 lakh and availed `

Limited. 

Working capital borrowing (excluding Haliyal 

 

`  

` 45,644 lakh in previous year end. The total 

working capital borrowing outstanding as on 31st 

March 2013 (incl Haliyal & Sankili) is `

The company incurred, including Haliyal and Sankili 

units, ` ` 7,554 lakh during 2011-12) of 

Capital expenditure during the year.

The total investment of the company as at 31st March, 

2013 was ` 87,110 lakh against ` 68,278 lakh in  

2011-12. During the year the Company made  

further investment in equity shares of Silkroad 

Sugar Private Ltd for ` 3,557 lakh. During the year  

2012-13, the company has received Bonus Debentures of  

`
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of unsecured loan given to subsidiary Parrys Sugar 

Industries Limited has been converted into 1,50,00,000 

preference shares of `  

`  

Sadashiva Sugars Limited were converted to 5,00,00,000 

equity shares of ` ` 5,000 lakh. 

Due to the merger of Haliyal and Sankili Units, the 

investments held by the company in Parrys Sugar 

 

`

Industries Limited in Alagawadi Bireshwar Sugars Private 

Limited has been transferred to the Company as per the 

Scheme of Arrangement. 

borrowings.

`

share to `

reserves.

Earnings per share increased by 141% to `

share for the year ended 31st March, 2013.

30.40% 17.80%

16.65%

24.63% 11.28%

1.36 0.73

0.65 0.35

1.60

0.67

investments)

2.61

1.14 1.41

Inventory Turnover (days) 155 72

Receivables (day gross sales) 44 53

Dividend % 600% 400%

Dividend Payout % 31% 51%

Earnings Per Share

77 70

on sale of investments.)

7.81

governance and any weakness or inadequacy can 

compliance and security of assets.

The company has a well established and robust internal 

systems and processes in place to ensure smooth 

guidelines commensurate with the level of responsibility 

The Internal Audit department monitors and makes 

systems, internal policies and regulatory requirements 

and reassurance that the Company’s Internal Audit 

quality standards for its processes.

Tremendous emphasis has been laid on improving the 

ERP and the Web based cane management system.

which reinforced the fact that disaster recovery 

mechanism is in use.
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Systems audit was conducted in all modules of SAP 

and the Cane management system. Based on the 

materials, sales and cane management system.

undertaken by the company over the last year across our 

factories:

 

 

Neelam cyclone.

  

75 members of the Winner society, a home for 

disabled children at Nellikuppam.

 

 Free eye screening camp for general public at 

Aravind Eye Hospital, Madurai.

promotes empowerment and freedom. In a challenging 

believes that people are the key to success. The Human 

People. Our Human Resources strategy is closely aligned 

is delivered by a high level of policy deployment 

Cost and HR Excellence.

During the year 2012-13, the company’s performance 

was rewarded through various awards including a 

award for ‘Best Talent Management’. Also, Nellikuppam 

Tamilnadu Industrial Minister during the year. 

Statements in this Management Discussion & Analysis 

expressed or implied in such forward-looking statements.

April 30, 2013 

On behalf of the Board

                                             

 

           Chairman
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REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

E.I.D.-Parry, a member of the Murugappa Group of 

constantly striving to improve them and adopt the best 

to corporate social responsibility are the enablers for 

a company to maximise value for all its stakeholders. 

Group by upholding the core values of integrity, passion, 

responsibility, quality and respect in dealing with all 

stakeholders of the Company.

 

Chairman. Of the 6 Directors, 4 are Independent 

Agreement.

 

 None of the Directors on the Board is a Member of 

she is a Director. 

 

 

the Murugappa Corporate Board. He holds a diploma 

Birmingham, U.K. and Masters in Business Studies 

from the University of Warwick Business School, 

U.K. He joined the E.I.D.-Parry Board in the year 

has been the Chairman of the Company since 2006.

 

an Engineering Graduate and holds Post Graduate 

Diploma in Management from IIM, Ahmedabad. He 

is also a Cost Accountant and a Company Secretary. 

He has 33 years of experience including 28 years 

in the Murugappa Group. He is the Lead Director 

 

Director. He was educated at Delhi University and 

Cambridge where he graduated with a degree in 

and appointed as Director of Foods and Beverages 

charge as Managing Director of Lipton. He became 

Chairman of Unilever Caribbean and successfully 

established Unilever business in the Caribbean.

He joined the E.I.D.-Parry Board in the year 2004. 

He has 41 years of industrial experience. He is the 

 

is a Chartered Accountant. He has put in more than 

Managing Director and CEO of LIC Pension Fund. He 

is presently the Secretary General of Life Insurance 

Council.

as an Independent Director of the Company. He 

was earlier the nominee Director of Life Insurance 

 Mr. M.B.N.Rao (64) is an Independent Director. He 

is the former Chairman and Managing Director of 

Canara Bank. He was also Chairman and Managing 

Director of Indian Bank during the period from 

2003 to 2005. He is a Graduate in Agriculture and 

& Finance. He is a Banker with over 38 years of 

experience and as the Board level appointee for 

about 8 years and at Chairman level for about 5 

years. He joined the E.I.D.-Parry Board in the year 

 

Castrol India Ltd. He was with Castrol for 34 years, 

Director. Under his leadership Castrol India had 

grown from being a minor oil company to becoming 

the number 2 lubricant company in India and the 

second largest Castrol Company worldwide. 
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He joined the E.I.D.- Parry  Board in the year 2002. 

He has 42 years of industrial experience. He is the 

 

2013 sent along with the Annual Report.

 

re-appointment.

 Mr. Ravindra S Singhvi stepped down from the Board 

both as the Managing Director and as a Director 

 

 

 

held by them in other Public Limited Companies are given below:

year 

1  

Chairman

Promoter, 

Non-Independent, 5 Yes 2 2 - 1

2  Non- 

Independent, 5 Yes - 4 - 2

3 Mr. Ravindra S.Singhvi Non- 

Independent, 5 Yes 1 - 1 - 

4 Independent,
5 Yes - 1 1 1

5 Independent, 
4^ Yes - 1 - -

6 Mr.M.B.N.Rao Independent,
5 Yes 1 13 3 6

7 Mr. R. A. Savoor Independent,
4 Yes - 3 3 2

30.01.2013.
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and others, reviewing the systems of internal controls 

reviewing the performance of independent accountants 

are as under:

a) To hold periodic discussions with the Statutory 

Auditors and Internal Auditors of the Company 

internal control systems, scope of audit and 

c) To review compliance with internal control systems;

of the Company before submission to the Board;

Company, including the Audit Report;

mechanism;

 

Head of Internal Audit, Head of Finance, senior 

Auditors and the Cost Auditor. The Company 

 

the statutory auditors and internal auditors at 

periodic intervals.

 

30.01.2013. 

 

1) Mr. R. A. Savoor 

Independent  Chairman 3

2) Mr. Anand Narain 

Independent 
Member 4

3) Mr.M.B.N.Rao 

Independent  Member 4

4)

Non - Independent Member 4

Directors, so as to ensure that they are fairly rewarded 

with industry standards.

Scheme(s) (‘the ESOP Schemes’) and also authorised to 

Schemes.

annual increments payable within the overall ceiling 

to the Board on any new appointments including  
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suitable policies and systems to ensure that there is no 

 

31.07.2012 and 30.01.2013.

 

 

1) Mr. R. A. Savoor 

Independent  Chairman 2

2) Mr. Anand Narain 

Independent 
Member 3

3)  

Non - Independent Member 3

following items:

similar size and in the industry.

talent in other industries.

fees.  In terms of the shareholders approval and the 

 

 

the Board for its decision. 

The actual commission paid to the Directors is restricted 

general law and other relevant factors. Depending on 

 

 

`

` 10,000 per 

 

Directors and Independent Directors are approved 

by the Board of Directors and have shareholders 

approval.

 

31st March, 2013 are as follows:

ì` in lakh

0.75 100.00

2.05 5.00

2.05 5.00

0.60* 3.73^

Mr.M.B.N.Rao 1.45 5.00

Mr.R.A.Savoor 1.25 5.00

` 30,000 was paid in the capacity of 

nominee director of LIC and ` 30,000 was paid in the 

capacity of Independent Director.

^  Commission would be appropriated on a prorata 

basis.
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`

5. Mr. M. B. N. Rao, Director – Nil.

6. Mr. R. A. Savoor, Director – Nil.

 

investors such as transfer or credit of shares to demat 

 

 

1)

Independent,  Chairman 4

2)

Non - Independent,  Member 4

3) Mr. Ravindra S. Singhvi

Non-Independent, Member 4

 Mr. Suresh Krishnan, Company Secretary is the 

 Details of number of complaints received and 

redressed during the year are given below:

Nil 6 4 2*

* Complaints received during last week of March, 2013 

borrowing powers of the Board delegated pursuant to 

amount not exceeding ` 300 crore (excluding working 

security.

 

 

No

1  

Non – Independent 

Promoter

Member

2

Independent Member

3 Mr. Ravindra S Singhvi * 

Non – Independent Member

The Company has laid down procedures to inform Board 

procedures. The Board periodically discusses the 
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1. 

2. 

the interest of stakeholders and assist the Board 

Governance Process.

3. 

a) Reviews the Risk Management Strategy 

developed by the Management for approval by 

the Board. 

Management issues.

Risk Management Systems.

appropriate in the light of changes in business 

 

 

year 

1) Mr.M.B.N.Rao 

Independent Chairman 1

2) Mr.Ravindra S. Singhvi* 

Non - Independent  Member 1

3)

Non-Independent

Member -

invitees.

Year 

March

2010 Wednesday

28.07.2010

4.00 

p.m.

Tamil Isai Sangam,

Rajah Annamalai Mandram,

5, Esplanade Road,

Chennai- 600 108

2011 Wednesday

27.07.2011

4.00

p.m.

Tamil Isai Sangam,

Rajah Annamalai Mandram,

5, Esplanade Road,

Chennai- 600 108

2012 Tuesday

31.07.2012

4.00

p.m.

Tamil Isai Sangam,

Rajah Annamalai Mandram,

5, Esplanade Road,

Chennai- 600 108

AGM

passed

28.07.2010 No Not Applicable

27.07.2011 No Not Applicable

31.07.2012 Yes Extension of Exercise 

Period of ESOPs 

granted under ESOP 

Scheme 2007 and 

Issuance of ESOP under 

ESOP Scheme – 2012

Durin
passed through Postal Ballot.

3. Appointment of Manager under Companies  

IMITED 



for all the Board members and the senior management 

of the Company, and the Code is posted on the website 

regarding compliance with the Code is obtained from 

every person covered by the Code of Conduct. A 

forming part of this report. 

The Company has framed a Code of Conduct for 

Company at large.

where they had or were deemed to have had personal 

the interest of the Company at large were placed before 

the Board.

in Note No.45 of Notes Forming Part of Financial 

Statements in the Annual Report. 

statements.

During the year under review, the Company has not 

raised any funds from public issue, rights issue or 

During the last three years, there were no strictures 

Exchanges or by SEBI or any statutory authority for  

markets.

that no personnel has been denied access to the Audit 

The Board reviews periodically compliance reports of 

all laws applicable to the Company, prepared by the 

Company as well as steps taken by the Company to 

The Company does not have any material non listed 

investments made by unlisted subsidiary companies. 

companies are placed before the Board of Directors of 

the Company for their review.

The Company has complied with the mandatory 

requirements of the Code of Corporate Governance 

with the Stock Exchanges. The Company has 

format to the stock exchanges for the quarters ended  

and March 31, 2013. 

this Report and will be forwarded to the Stock Exchanges 

and the Registrar of Companies, Tamilnadu, Chennai, 

along with the Annual Report.

1. As detailed in the earlier paragraphs, the Company 

 

of the risk management policy. The details of  risk 

the Management Discussion and Analysis Report 

forming part of the Annual Report. 
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 The Company has adopted a Whistle Blower Policy 

and vendors an avenue to raise concerns, in line 

with E.I.D.-Parry (India) Limited’s commitment to 

the  highest possible standards of ethical, moral and 

legal business conduct and its commitment to open 

of the Whistle Blower mechanism.

The Whistle Blower Policy has also been posted in 

the Company’s website - www.eidparry.com

Company’s website and any major developments are 

covered in the press releases issued by the Company 

and posted in the Company’s website. The Company 

has therefore not been sending the half yearly 

 Other non mandatory requirements have not been 

adopted by the Company.

leading business daily, Business Standard (English) and 

and press releases are placed on Company’s website  

www.eidparry.com.

held are also posted on the Company’s website.

The Company, in line with its stated policy of being 

corporate governance, is in compliance with many of 

these guidelines, as reported in the earlier paragraphs. As 

regards the remaining guidelines, the Company is in the 

progressively.

The Management Discussion and Analysis Report forms part of the Annual Report.

On behalf of the Board

April 30, 2013   Chairman

IMITED 



AUDITORS’ CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

with Stock Exchanges.

of the Company.

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS

Chartered Accountants 

 Partner

DECLARATION ON CODE OF CONDUCT

The Board of Directors

E.I.D.-Parry (India) Limited

Dare House

Parrys Corner 

Chennai- 600 001

Dear Sirs,

company. The code of conduct has also been posted on the website of the Company. 

Agreement with Stock Exchanges.  
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GENERAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

. 

 Day, Date and Time

Tamil Isai Sangam,

Rajah Annamalai Mandram,

5, Esplanade Road, Chennai – 600 108.

 1st April 2012 to 31st March 2013

. 

(Both days inclusive)

Not Applicable

. 

 

Exchange Plaza,

Bandra Kurla Complex,

Bandra (E), 

Mumbai –400 051.

 Bombay Stock Exchange Ltd.,

Dalal Street, Mumbai – 400 001.

paid to all the above Stock Exchanges.)

 

Code/ISIN

EID PARRY EQ

Bombay Stock Exchange Ltd. (BSE) 500125

NSDL & CDSL INE126A01031 

`.P. `.P. `.P. `.P.

Apr-2012 177.35 14,38,854 201.50 178.10 7,66,241

May-2012 173.10 3,66,303 203.30 172.15 8,45,256

165.05 1,40,825 183.80 164.5 5,86,062 7,26,887

211.85 172.00 13,25,028 213.45

Aug-2012 222.75 205.10 223.55 203.50 14,00,777

Sep-2012 214.50 3,33,558 240.40 210.00 16,72,653

Oct-2012 214.55 214.25

Nov-2012 247.80 224.00 246.00 222.80 10,02,713

Dec-2012 203.40 1,85,125 205.10 8,40,670

215.00 175.00 23,07,318 173.05 43,22,264

Feb-2013 183.00 142.00 184.40 133.80 14,45,230

Mar-2013 144.00 170.80 142.50

IMITED 



Karvy Computershare Private Limited, 

Unit: E.I.D.-Parry(India) Ltd.,

Hyderabad - 500 081.

E.I.D.-Parry (India) Limited,

Secretarial Department, 

3rd Floor, Dare House, Parrys Corner,

Chennai - 600 001.

Person    Company Secretary

 

 Share transfers are approved by Shares & 

 

authorised to approve transfers up to 5,000 shares 

(Face value of `

 

have been jointly authorised to approve request for 

transfers up to 1,000 shares (Face value of ` 1 each) 

 

to approve transfers up to 500 shares (Face value of 

`

year

Non receipt of share 

dividend

6 4

Two complaints received during the last week of March, 

share 

%

shares

%

1- 5000 1,16,40,651 6.62

5001-10000 488 1.14 35,70,038 2.03

10001-20000 246 0.58 2.01

20001-30000 0.22 1.33

30001-40000 42 0.10 15,01,248 0.86

40001-50000 26 0.06 0.68

50001-100000 51 0.12 2.07

100001&Above 116 0.27 84.40

Mode share 

%

shares

%

Physical 10,677 54,35,027

Electronic
32,083 75.03 17,03,31,837

Sensex Close Price
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share shares

Promoters 54 45.22

Clearing Members
41,285 3,28,45,110

1,04,16,817

Co.'s

26 1,41,52,574 8.05

67 2,64,27,361 15.04

Private Corporate 

Bodies
732 5.64

567 24,64,445 1.40

Trusts 10 55,055 0.03

The Company’s shares are compulsorily traded in 

dematerialized form and are available for trading on 

Depository Limited (NSDL) and Central Depository 

Services (India) Limited (CDSL). Equity shares of the 

capital are dematerialized as on March 31, 2013. The 

Stock Exchange of India Limited and the Bombay Stock 

Exchange Limited, in electronic form.

 

outstanding. Each GDR represents one underlying  

equity share.

 Nellikuppam - 607 105

 Cuddalore District

 Tamilnadu

2 Sugar Factory

 Karur District

 Tamilnadu

3 Sugar Factory

 Ariyur, Kandamangalam Post

 Puducherry - 605 001

4 Sugar Factory

 Tiruchirapalli District

 Tamilnadu

5 Sugar Factory

 Kurumbur - 614 622

 Tamilnadu

 Sivagangai Taluk, Sivagangai District - 630 561

 Tamilnadu

 Karnataka

 Regidi Amadalavalasa Mandal

 Srikakulam District - 532 440

 Andhra Pradesh

 Cuddalore Taluk - 608 803

 Cuddalore District

 Tamilnadu

 Panangudi Post - 622 505

 Tamilnadu

11 145, Budikere Road

 Karnataka

E.I.D.-Parry (India) Limited,

Secretarial Department,

3rd Floor, Dare House,

Parrys Corner,

Chennai - 600 001.
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OTHER INFORMATION FOR SHAREHOLDERS

DIVIDENDS

Shareholders who have not encashed their dividend 

warrants (for earlier periods) may approach our Registrar 

period of 7 years has to be transferred by the Company 

no claim shall lie for such unclaimed dividends from IEPF 

by the members.  Year wise details of the dividend paid 

out are given below:

Year
Type

`

2005-06 Final 4.50 24.08.2013
2006-07 Interim 4.50 24.08.2013
2006-07 Final 1.40 31.08.2014
2007-08 Final 0.50

Special 4.00 15.11.2015
Interim 10.00 28.04.2016

Final 6.00
Interim 6.00 14.03.2017

Final 4.00
2010-11 Interim 2.00 01.05.2018
2011-12 Interim 4.00
2012-13 Interim 6.00 08.03.2020

NOMINATION FACILITY

facility is mainly useful for all holders holding the shares 

in single name. 

death of all the holders.

Investors are advised to avail of this facility, especially 

process of transmission by law.

BENEFITS OF DEMATERIALISATION 

shareholders who are holding shares in physical form are 

advised to convert their holdings into demat form, since 

the Company’s equity shares are under compulsory 

demat trading. 

GENERAL

Transfer Agent.  Members holding shares in electronic 

form are requested to update with their depository 

UNCLAIMED SUSPENSE ACCOUNT

In accordance with Clause 5A of the amended Equity 

shares which remained unclaimed by shareholders to 

that accrue on these shares such as bonus shares, split 

etc. shall also be credited to the Unclaimed Suspense 

remain frozen. Shareholders are requested to write to 

the Registrar & Transfer Agent and provide the correct 

details to enable the Company to transfer the unclaimed 

account.

The following disclosures are made in pursuance of 

Exchanges.

(i) Aggregate number of shareholders and the 

outstanding shares lying in the unclaimed suspense 

account at the beginning of the year

2,576 14,74,160

(ii) Number of shareholders who approached the issuer 

for transfer of shares from the unclaimed suspense 

account during the year

20 28,080

(iii) Number of shareholders to whom shares were 

transferred from the unclaimed suspense account 

during the year

20 28,080

(iv) Aggregate number of shareholders and the 

outstanding shares lying in the unclaimed suspense 

account at the end of the year

2,556 14,46,080
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF 

IMITED 



comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2013, 

Statement for the year then ended, and a summary of 

The Company’s Management is responsible for the 

and maintenance of internal control relevant to the 

that give a true and fair view and are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these 

Those Standards require that we comply with ethical 
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain 

statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit 
evidence about the amounts and the disclosures in the 

on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment 

statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making 
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal 

to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained 

audit opinion.

the Act in the manner so required and give a true and 

generally accepted in India:

of the Company as at 31 March, 2013;

date; and

(c) in the case of the Cash Flow Statement, of the cash 

date.
 

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) 

that:

and belief were necessary for the purposes of our 
audit.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as 
required by law have been kept by the Company 

books.

Loss, and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by 
this Report are in agreement with the books of 
account.

(d) In our opinion, the Balance Sheet, the Statement 

received from the directors as on 31 March 2013 
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none 

2013 from being appointed as a director in terms 

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS
Chartered Accountants 

 Partner

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF  
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(i) Having regard to the nature of the Company’s 

4(vi),4(x),4(xii),4(xiii), 4(xiv), 4(xviii),and 4(xx) of the 

Order are not applicable. 

(a)  The Company has maintained proper records 

during the year by the Management in accordance 

given to us, no material discrepancies were 

going concern status of the Company.

(iii) In respect of its inventories:

(a) As explained to us, the inventories were physically 

reasonable intervals.

the Management were reasonable and adequate 

nature of its business.

maintained proper records of its inventories 

(iv) The Company has neither granted nor taken any 

internal control system commensurate with the size 

of the Company and the nature of its business for 

the sale of goods and services and during the course 

failure to correct major weaknesses in such internal 

control system. 

to us, there are no contracts or arrangements that 

need to be entered in the Register maintained in 

(vii)In our opinion the Company has an adequate internal 

audit system commensurate with the size and nature 

of its business.

(viii)We have broadly reviewed the cost records 

maintained by the Company pursuant to the 

opinion that, , the prescribed cost records 

have been maintained. We have, however, not made 

view to determining whether they are accurate or 

complete. 

to us in respect of statutory dues:

(a) The Company has generally been regular in 

Income-tax, Sales Tax, Wealth Tax, Service Tax, 

Customs Duty, Excise Duty, Cess and other 

material statutory dues applicable to it with the 

(b) There were no undisputed amounts payable in 

Income-tax, Sales Tax, Wealth Tax, Service Tax, 

Customs Duty, Excise Duty, Cess and other 

material statutory dues in arrears as at 31 March 

2013 for a period of more than six months from 

the date they became payable. 

(c) Details of dues of Income-tax, Sales Tax, Wealth 

Tax, Service Tax, Customs Duty, Excise Duty and 

Cess which have not been deposited as on  31 

March 2013 on account of disputes are given 

below:

 

IMITED 



 

`

Central Excise Act, Excise Duty

(Appeals),CESTAT,High court

Assessment Year  

2002-03 to 2012-13
1,060

(Services Tax)

Service Tax dues Assessment Year  

2002-03 to 2011-12
226

Tax Acts

Sales Tax - Local Assessment year  

to 2005-06

151

Central Sales Tax Sales Tax - CST

Commissioner,Tribunal, High 

Court

Assessment Year 70

Tamil Nadu General TNGST Act

Commissioner,Tribunal, High 

Court

Assessment Year  

2001-02 and 2002-03
12

Customs Duty CESTAT Assessment Year  

2006-07
4,302

Income Tax Act, Income Tax Assessment Year  

2003-04 to 2006-07
654

not defaulted in the repayment of dues to banks, 

the guarantees given by the Company for loans taken 

not, , prejudicial to the interests of the 

Company.

applied by the Company for the purposes for which 

they were obtained.

we report that funds raised on short-term basis have, 

prima facie, not been used during the year for long-

term investment.

given to us, during the period covered by our audit 

report, the Company had issued 1600 debentures of  

`

security in respect of the debentures issued. 

(xv)To the best of our knowledge and according to the 

by the Company and no fraud on the Company has 

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS

Chartered Accountants

   Partner
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ì` in lakh

(a) Share Capital 2  1,758  1,737 

(b) Reserves and Surplus 3  1,20,026 

(a) Long Term Borrowings 4  33,327 

5  13,380  12,564 

(a) Short Term Borrowings 6  45,644 

(b) Trade Payables 7  21,547  12,513

8 17,801

(d) Short Term Provisions  1,031 827

TOTAL

(a) Fixed Assets 10

     (i) Tangible Assets  1,22,870 

     (ii) Intangible Assets  107  5 

     (iii) Capital Work in Progress  6,201 

(b) Non Current Investments 11  87,110 

(c) Long Term Loans & Advances 12  15,724 23,200

(a) Current Investments 13  -    300 

(b) Inventories 14  78,253  25,543 

(c) Trade Receivables 15  21,544 22,036

(d) Cash and Cash Equivalents 16  3,457 

(e) Short Term Loans & Advances 12  23,854 17,543

(f) Other Current Assets 17

TOTAL

statements

1-48

    

    

    

    

    

     

April 30, 2013     April 30, 2013

IMITED 



ì` in lakh

 2,04,146  1,58,326 

Less: Excise Duty  4,147 

18

Other Income  17,038 

Cost of materials consumed 20  1,63,728 

Purchases of Stock-in-Trade 21  1,572  1,213 

and stock in trade
22  (40,160)  (7,207)

23  11,804 

Finance costs 24  13,668  6,443 

` 14 Lakh  

(2012 : ` 14 Lakh)

 -  10,787 

Other expenses 25

 26,573  - 

 (1) Current Tax  750 

 (750)

5  (125)

` 43

   (a) Basic (`)

   (b) Diluted (`)

statements

1-48

        

    

    

    

     

April 30, 2013     April 30, 2013
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ì` in lakh

 

 10,787 

Finance costs  13,668  6,443 

Dividend Income  (32,182)  (12,561)

 (180)  (344)

 -  -

Interest Income  (3,347)  (2,247)

back
 (574)  (320)

debts
 1,352 

Provision for Compensated absences  164  162 

 -  

Fixed Assets scrapped  33  13  (105)

Trade and other receivables  (13,577)

Inventories  (40,464)

 7,108  (35,321)

 23 

Direct taxes paid net of refund  (178)  (721)

advances
 (7,371)

 360 

Purchase of investments  -   -  

Investments in subsidiary companies (Refer note 

below)
 (30,130)  (15,314)

Loans and Advances given to subsidiary 

companies (Refer note below)
 (6,375)  (5,220)

Proceeds from Sale of investments  -   50 

Interest received  (2,025)  2,318 

Proceeds from Fixed Deposit  40  4,051 

Dividend income received  32,182  12,561 

Proceeds from issue of equity shares  366 

Proceeds from long term borrowings  10,000 

Repayment of long term borrowings  (13,802)  (10,751)

Proceeds from other term borrowings (net)  31,500  23,233 

borrowing

Finance costs

Dividends paid Including Dividend Tax  (10,372)

IMITED 



ì` in lakh

Cash and cash equivalents as at 1st April 2012  3,110  1,010 

Add: Cash & Cash Equivalents acquired pursuant 

to a scheme of arrangement (demerger) - Refer 

note 30

 264 -

Cash and cash equivalents as at 31st, March 2013  1,144  3,110 

Cash and Cash equivalents as per Balance Sheet 

Note 16
 3,457 

Add: Current Investments considered as Cash and 

Cash Equivalents
-  300 

Less: Deposits not considered as Cash and 

Statements

 67  134 

Less: Balance In Dividend account  454  513 

Less: Balance In Margin Money account  27  - 

ì` in lakh

- Allotment of equity shares to minority shareholders  18 

- Fixed assets (Net)  45,522 

- Investments  1,363 

- Other assets  24,238 

- Loan funds  (51,136)

Conversion of loans given to subsidiaries to equity shares  5,000 

Conversion of loans given to subsidiaries to Preference shares  1,500  10,000 

    

        

    

     

April 30, 2013     April 30, 2013
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Inputs business through its subsidiary, Coromandel 

EID Parry together with its subsidiaries has nine sugar 

factories having a capacity to crush 34,750 Tonnes of 

Cane per day, generate 146 MW of power and four 

growing wellness segment mainly catering to the world 

markets with its organic products.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES   

  

prepared in accordance with the Generally Accepted 

2006 (as amended) and the relevant provisions of the 

been prepared on accrual basis under the historical 

statements are consistent with those followed in the 

previous year.

in conformity with Indian GAAP requires the 

considered in the reported amounts of assets and 

reported income and expenses during the year. The 

(i) Inventories other than by-products are valued at 

lower of cost and net realisable value.

incurred in bringing such inventories to their 

that are subsequently recoverable from taxing 

(iii) In respect of Raw materials, boughtout items, 

consumables and stores and spares, cost is 

determined based on weighted average cost basis.

net realisable value.

Cash comprises cash on hand and demand 

deposits with banks. Cash equivalents are short-

term balances (with an original maturity of three 

known amounts of cash and which are subject to 

  

non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past 

the Company are segregated based on the available 

land and buildings and leased assets) is calculated 

on Straight line method on following basis:

useful life of the assets at rates which are equal 

Buildings      1.67% to 3.65%

Computers     31.67%

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

IMITED 



Furniture    6.67 % to 33.33 %

basis.

(iii) Leased assets are fully depreciated over the 

primary lease period.

` 5,000 or less are fully 

calculated on the original cost is recouped from 

years.

(i) Sales are recognised, net of returns and trade 

rewards of ownership to the buyer, which 

generally coincides with the delivery of goods to 

customers. Sales include excise duty but exclude 

sales tax and value added tax.

ii) Income from services rendered is booked 

Book Scheme are treated as income in the year 

iv) Interest income is accounted on accrual basis.

v) Dividend income is accounted when the right to 

receive the dividend is established.

Tangible Fixed Assets (other than those which have 

been revalued) are carried at cost less accumulated 

price net of any trade discounts and rebates, any 

asset ready for its intended use, other incidental 

asset is ready for its intended use. Machinery spares 

are capitalised and depreciated over the useful life of 

the principal item of the relevant assets. Subsequent 

asset beyond its previously assessed standard of 

Leasehold land and leasehold improvements are 

Capital Work in Progress: Projects under which 

use and other capital work-in-progress are carried 

at cost, comprising direct cost, related incidental 

entered into by the Company are accounted at 

the exchange rates prevailing on the date of the 

Measurement on Balance Sheet date: Foreign 

currency monetary items of the Company, 

outstanding at the balance sheet date are restated 

at the year-end rates. Non-monetary items of the 

Company are carried at historical cost.

recognised as income or expense in the Statement of 

forward exchange contracts, which are not 

if such contracts relate to monetary items as at 

is recognized as income or expense for the year. 

Long-term investments are carried individually 

temporary, in the value of such investments. Current 

investments are carried individually, at the lower 

of cost and fair value. Cost of investments include 
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scheme, gratuity fund, compensated absences, 

long service awards and post-employment medical 

be made.

the Projected Unit Credit method, with actuarial 

date. Actuarial gains and losses are recognised in 

which they occur. Past service cost is recognised 

past service cost, as reduced by the fair value 

The undiscounted amount of short - term 

exchange for the services rendered by employees 

are recognised during the year when the 

absences which are expected to occur within 

which the employee renders the related service.  

 

The cost of short-term compensated absences is 

accounted as under :

(i) in case of accumulated compensated 

absences, when employees render the 

future compensated absences; and

absences, when the absences occur.

Compensated absences which are not expected 

the period in which the employee renders the 

related service are recognised as a liability at the 

at the balance sheet date less the fair value of 

recognised as a liability at the present value of 

sheet date.

With respect to the Provident Fund Trust 

administered by the company, the company shall 

declared by Trust over statutory limit. Having 

regard to the assets of the Fund and the return on 

the investments, the company does not expect 

Company follows the intrinsic value method 

as on date of grant over the exercise price of 

arising from foreign currency borrowings to the 

extent they are regarded as an adjustment to the 

of funds to the extent not directly related to the 

for qualifying assets, pertaining to the period from 

interrupted.

52 IMITED 



on the dominant source, nature of risks and returns 

deciding how to allocate resources and in assessing 

performance.

the Company. Segment revenue, segment expenses, 

 

Inter-segment revenue is accounted on the 

 

to the Company as a whole and are not allocable to 

segments on reasonable basis have been included 

an expense in the revenue account as per the lease 

terms

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing 

average number of equity shares outstanding during 

the year. Diluted earnings per share is computed 

adjusted for dividend, interest and other charges to 

equity shares, by the weighted average number of 

equity shares considered for deriving basic earnings 

per share and the weighted average number of 

equity shares which could have been issued on the 

only if their conversion to equity shares would 

Current tax is the amount of tax payable on the 

taxable income for the year as determined in 

accordance with the provisions of the Income Tax 

Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) paid in accordance 

with the tax laws, which gives future economic 

tax liability, is considered as an asset if there is 

convincing evidence that the Company will pay 

normal income tax. Accordingly, MAT is recognised 

as an asset in the Balance Sheet when it is probable 

are capable of reversal in one or more subsequent 

periods. Deferred tax is measured using the tax rates 

forward losses only to the extent that reasonable 

will be available against which these can be realised. 

and carry forward of losses, deferred tax assets are 

recognised only if there is virtual certainty that there 

levied by the same governing tax laws and the 

Company has a legally enforceable right for such set 

sheet date for their realisability.

Insurance claims are accounted for on the basis of 

extent that there is no uncertainty in receiving the 

claims.

Revenue expenditure pertaining to research is 

Development costs of products are also charged to 

technological feasibility has been established, in 

which case such expenditure is capitalised. The 

amount capitalised comprises expenditure that can 
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making the asset ready for its intended use. Fixed 

capitalised and depreciated in accordance with 

the policies stated for Tangible Fixed Assets and 

Intangible Assets.

units at each Balance Sheet date are reviewed for 

and impairment is recognised, if the carrying amount 

of these assets exceeds their recoverable amount. 

The recoverable amount is the greater of the net 

their present value based on an appropriate discount 

periods no longer exists or may have decreased, 

such reversal of impairment loss is recognised in 

revalued assets.

A provision is recognised when the Company has 

to their present value and are determined based on 

the balance sheet date. These are reviewed at each 

The Company uses foreign currency forward 

contracts to hedge its risks associated with foreign 

date. Changes in the fair value of these forward 

surplus, net of applicable deferred income taxes and 

in the same periods during which the forecasted 

expires or is sold, terminated, or exercised, or no 

and Loss.

 

 

 

 

are accounted as per the policy stated for 

 

and losses are recognised in the Statement of 

Service tax input credit is accounted for in the books 

in the period in which the underlying service received 

is accounted and when there is no uncertainty in 

equivalents, the Company has determined its 

and non-current.
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 2

SHARE CAPITAL

ì` in lakh

AUTHORISED :

Equity Shares:

51,50,00,000 Equity Shares of `  5,150  5,150 

(2012 - 51,50,00,000 Equity Shares of ` 

Preference Shares:

50,00,000 Redeemable Preference Shares of `  5,000  5,000 

(2012 - 50,00,000 Redeemable Preference Shares of `

17,57,66,864 Equity Shares of `  1,758  1,737 

(2012 - 17,36,62,476 Equity Shares of `

` 

` 

note 42 for other details about the scheme.

2.3 Details of shares held by each shareholder holding more than 5 percent of equity shares in the company:

  

% %

Party)
 5,87,35,204 33.42 5,87,35,204 33.82

Ambadi Investment Private Ltd 5.30 5.37

5.18  -  - 

 

Reliance Growth Fund
 -  -  33,80,148 

` ` 

`

At the beginning of the period 17,36,62,476  1,737  1,732 

Allotment of shares on exercise of Employee Stock 
 2,65,810  3  4,64,276  5 

Allotment of shares pursuant to Scheme of 

Arrangement (Refer note 30)
 18,38,578  18 - -
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 2

The Company has only one class of Equity share having a par value of ` 

the number of equity shares held.

shareholders is ` `

RESERVES AND SURPLUS

ì` in lakh

Opening balance  1,348  1,348 

 1,348  - 

Closing balance

Opening balance

 188  360 

Closing balance

Opening balance  2,750  1,167 

 2,500  1,583 

 1,250  - 

Closing balance

Opening balance  540  554 

 14  14 

Closing balance

IMITED 



NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ì` in lakh

Opening balance  68,477 

 2,120  - 

 35,000  1,400 

Closing balance

Opening balance  4 

 412  (401)

Closing balance

Opening Balance  34,164 

 33,171  13,732 

 71,137 

Interim Dividend on Equity Shares -` `

per share)

 10,431 

 -  - 

 1,250  1,583 

Transfer to General Reserve  35,000  1,400 

Closing Balance

3.1 During the year, 2,65,810 equity shares of `

` 188 Lakh (2012 - ` 360 Lakh) 

` 2,500 Lakh (2012 - ` 1,583 Lakh) by transfer from 

` 30,000 Lakh (2012 - `

of `  

` 5,000 Lakh of NCD during the year 2012-13.

` 14 Lakh (2012 - `

subsidiary company is higher than dividend paid by the company
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

LONG TERM BORROWINGS

ì` in lakh

March 

2012-13 series (Refer note 4.1)
 10,000 - - -

2012-13 series (Refer note 4.2)
 6,000 - - -

2011-12 series (Refer note 4.3)
 6,000  6,000  -  - 

2011-12 series (Refer note 4.4)
 4,000  4,000 -  - 

2010-11 series (Refer note 4.5)
-  4,000  4,000  - 

 -  -  -  5,000 

Banks (Refer note 4.7 to 4.7.4)  3,420 

Government of India - Sugar Development Fund (Refer note 

4.8)
 7,851  7,644  2,147  1,131 

 2,500  2,500  -  - 

Secured Borrowings  73,416  30,827 

Unsecured Borrowings  2,500  2,500  -  - 

(Refer note 8)
 -  - 

` ` 10,000 Lakh to 

be secured by a pari passu

` ` 6,000 Lakh are 

secured by a pari passu

situated at Pugalur. Debentures are redeemable in full at par on 23rd October 2015.

` ` 6,000 Lakh are 

secured by a pari passu

pari passu

IMITED 



` ` 4,000 Lakh 

are secured by a pari passu 

pari passu

` ` 4,000 Lakh 

are secured by a pari passu

pari passu

` ` 5,000 Lakh 

are secured by a pari passu

pari passu

are redeemed in full at par on 4th September, 2012.

4.7.  The summary of Bank loans are as follows;

ì` in lakh

HDFC Bank  -  13 Repaid in 2012-13

State Bank of India (Refer note 4.7.1)  20  1,200 Repayable in two equal annual 

instalments.

Canara Bank  -  1,250 Repaid in 2012-13

State Bank of India (Refer note 4.7.2)  2,173  3,151 

equal half yearly instalments and 

4 annual instalments

Indusind Bank Limited  -  5,000 Repaid in 2012-13

note 4.7.3)

 2,741 Repayable over four years in nine 

instalments

Axis Bank Limited* (Refer note 4.7.4.1)  20,500 - Repayable over next six years in 

22 quarterly instalments

ICICI Bank Limited* (Refer note 4.7.4.2)  14,737 -
in 16 equal quarterly instalments

State Bank of India* (Refer note 4.7.4.3) - Repayable in 24 quarterly 

instalments

 The above loans carries interest rates ranging 7.8% - 12.85% per annum.

 *Loans transferred and vested with the company pursuant to scheme of arrangement (Demerger) - Refer note 30

` 20 Lakh are secured by a pari passu

pari 

passu

current assets.

` 2,173 Lakh are secured by a pari passu

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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pari 

passu

current assets.

 

` 2,741 Lakh (US$ 5 Million) is secured by a pari passu

pari passu

4.7.4.1 Rupee term loans from Axis Bank Limited are secured by pari passu

Haliyal plants.

4.7.4.2 Rupee term loans from ICICI Bank Limited are secured by pari passu

Haliyal Plants.

4.7.4.3 Rupee term loans from State Bank of India are secured by pari passu

Haliyal plants.

4.8. The summary of Sugar Development Fund loans are as follows :

ì` in lakh

  1,356 

 

(Refer note 4.8.1)
 1,301  1,856 

 
 4,483 

 

(Refer note 4.8.1)
 1,080  1,080 

Haliyal - Raw Sugar Processing, Cane Development Loan and  
 1,584 -

Development Loan (Refer note 4.8.2)
 770 -

4.8.1 The loans are secured by way of a Bank Guarantee from State Bank of India. It carries interest rate of 4% and 

repayable over 7 to 14 years.

4.8.2 The loans are secured by way of pari passu

interest rate of 4% and repayable over 7 to 14 years.

4.10 There is no default in repayment of the loans and interest thereon.

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

IMITED 



NOTE 5

ì` in lakh

 4,332 1,078

-  (6,452)  1,871  (4,581)

compensated absences and others
 (745)  -  (13)  (758)

`

to the scheme of arrangement (Demerger) - Refer note 30. The corresponding amount has been credited to General 

Reserve.

SHORT TERM BORROWINGS            ì` in lakh

(a) Loans repayable on demand

From Banks

(i)  Secured (Refer note 6.1)  11,380 

(ii) Unsecured (Refer note 6.2)  30,228 

 3,000  -  

(c) Commercial Papers - Unsecured  35,500  4,000 

(d) Security Deposits - Unsecured  42  36 

(other than Pugalur unit).

services.

TRADE PAYABLES              ì` in lakh

Trade payables (Refer note 7.1)

     - Acceptances  612  - 

     - Other than acceptances  12,513 

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

by the auditors.

OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

ì` in lakh

(b) Interest accrued but not due on borrowings

(c) Interest accrued and due on borrowings 24 -

(d) Unclaimed dividends (Refer note 8.1 & 8.2) 454 513 

- Excise Duty on undespatched stock

- Mark to Market Provision  -   400 

- Due to Directors 166 

Taxes, 
570 

602 512 

3,838 4,310 

8.1 These amounts represent warrants issued to the Shareholders which remained unpresented as on March 31, 2013.

` in lakh

Provision for compensated absences  1,031  827 

IMITED 
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ì` in lakh

(a) Investments in Equity Instruments

(i) Subsidiary Companies

17,71,55,580 (2012 - 17,71,55,580) shares of `

`

Parrys Sugar Industries Limited (Refer note 30)
 8,475 

(a) Investments in Equity Instruments

(i)Other companies

23,600 (2012 - 23,600) shares of `  
 4  4 

100 (2012 - 100) shares of `  

Travancore Sugars and Chemicals Limited
 -   -  

8,244 (2012 - 8,244) shares of `

India 
 25  25 

`  

Cholamandalam Investment and Finance Company Limited
 -   -  

`  

Coromandel Engineering Company Limited
 4  4 

2,000 (2012 - 2,000) shares of `  

in Carborundum Universal Limited 
 -   -  

(a) Investments in Debt Instruments

(i) Subsidiary Companies

 

of `
 26,574 -

(a) Investments in Equity Instruments

(i) Subsidiary Companies

776 (2011 - 776) shares of USD 100 each fully paid up in Parry America Inc  24  24 

15,00,000 (2012 - 15,00,000) shares of `  

Parrys Sugar Limited
 150  150 

2,50,150 (2012 - 2,50,150) shares of `

Investments Limited
 37  37 

50,00,000 (2012 - 50,00,000) shares of `

Infrastructure Company Private Limited 
 500  500 

1,06,600 (2012 - 1,06,600) shares of `

Phytoremedies Private Limited 
 213  213 

11,02,70,018 (2012 - 6,02,70,018) shares of `

Sadashiva Sugars Ltd (Refer note. 11.2)

 7,040  7,040 
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11,51,18,416 (2012 - NIL) shares of `

Sugar Private Limited - (Refer note 11.3) (Silkroad Sugar Private Limited 

has become a subsidiary company from December 12, 2012 on increase of 
 24,741  -  

1,02,222 equity shares of `

Sugars Private Limited (acquired pursuant to Scheme of Arrangement 

(demerger)- (Refer note 30)

 1,363 -

NIL (2012 - 5,81,40,614) shares of `

Private Limited - (Refer note 11.3)
 -   21,184 

(iii) Other companies

18,270 (2012 - 18,270) shares of `

Management Services Limited
 18  18 

(b) Investments in Preference shares

(i) Subsidiary Companies

 

`
 256  1,412 

`

fully paid up Parrys Sugar Industries Limited (Refer note 30)
 -   10,000 

`

Parrys Sugar Industries Limited (issued during the year) (Refer note 11.4)
 1,500 -

(a) Investments in Equity Instruments

(i) Subsidiary Companies

`  

Parry Agro Chem Exports Limited
 -   -  

(ii) Other Companies

125 (2012 - 125) shares of 25 pence each fully paid up in Hawker Siddley 

Group Limted (Refer note 11.5)
 -   -  

10,000 (2012 - 10,000) shares of ` 

 

`

 -   -  

266 (2012 - 266) shares of `
 -   -  

6,37,200 (2012 - 6,37,200) shares of `

Potash Limited
 32  32 

1,00,000 (2012 - 1,00,000) shares of `
 10  10 

2 (2012 - 2) shares of `

Thermal Ceramics Limited
 -   -  

20 (2012 - 20) shares of `

Private Limited (Refer note 11.5)
 -   -  

 1  1 

(c) Investments in debentures or bonds

 64  64 

 -  

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ì` in lakh

IMITED 



NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Debentures of ` ` 26,574 Lakh to the company. This has been recognised as dividend 

` 8,858 Lakh from 2014-15. 

Equity shares of `

of `

1,50,00,000 Nos. of 8% Redeemable Preference Share Capital of `

process of being transferred in the name of the Company.

LOANS AND ADVANCES

ì` in lakh

(a) Capital Advances  1,473  1,480  -   -  

(b) Security Deposits  6  -   80  -  

 13,831  7,250 

(d) Advance Income Tax

Net of Provision for Tax (`  

`
 3,285  -   -  

 -   -   436 

 2,180  -   -  

(g) Advance recoverable in cash or in kind or for value to 

be received

(i) Unsecured and Considered Good  2,741  2,424  12,607 

 487  138  -   -  

 (487)  (138)  -   -  
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CURRENT INVESTMENTS

(At lower of cost and fair value, unless otherwise stated)  ì` in lakh

`

Dividend

 -  150

`
 -  150

INVENTORIES 

 (At lower of cost and net realisable value)           ì` in lakh

  (a) Raw materials  1,103  1,166 

  (b) Work-in-process

  (c) Finished goods  70,783  21,033 

  (d) Stock-in-trade (goods acquired for trading) 481 

  (e) Stores and spares  3,537  2,060 

ì` in lakh

(a) Trade receivables outstanding for a period exceeding six months 

from the date they were due for payment

(i) Considered good  7,014 8,112 

 775  1,324 

 (775)  (1,324)

(b) Other Trade Receivables - Considered good  14,530 

IMITED 



NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

ì` in lakh

(a) Cash on hand 17 7 

 815 

(c) Balances with banks

(i)   In Current account 312 262 

(ii)  In Deposit account (Refer note 16.2) 67 

(iii) In earmarked accounts

- In Dividend account 454 513 

- In Margin Money accounts towards Bank Guarantee 27  -  

Statements is ` 1,146 Lakh (2012 - ` 2,810 Lakh)

    

` 67 Lakh (2012 - ` 15 Lakh) which have an original maturity 

of more than 12 months.

OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

ì` in lakh

- Income Accrued on Deposits, Loans & Advances etc. 

(Refer note 17.1)
 2,003 

- Unbilled revenue  157  153 

- Insurance claims  303  472 

- Mark to Market Provision  240  -  

- Other receivables  -   338 

17.1 Includes Interest receivable : ` 1,807 Lakh (2012 - `

AS 18.

REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS

ì` in lakh

(a) Sales of Products (Refer note 18.1)  2,01,348  1,56,138 

- Sundry Income  447 

- Duty Drawback  658 

- Scrap sales  850  514 

 574  320 

 2,04,146  1,58,326 

Less : Excise Duty  4,147 
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ì` in lakh

Sugar  1,15,721  1,06,825 

Raw sugar  37,572  12,385 

Bio and Nutra products  13,052 

Power  13,064 

 20,186  11,508 

Organic Manure

OTHER INCOME

ì` in lakh

(a) Interest Income

On bank deposits  24  253 

On Debenture - Subsidiary (Refer note 45)  1,651  -  

On loans and advances to subsidiaries (Refer note 45)  1,351  1,844 

On others  321  3,347  150  2,247 

(i)  Current investments  275  141 

(ii)  Long term investments

Subsidiaries (Refer note 45)  5,315  12,401 

Others  12,561 

 180  344 

(Refer note 28(A))

 -  8 

 1,878 

ì` in lakh

- Rental income  760 

- Services  300  318 

- Insurance claim received  113  632 

- Others  168 

IMITED 



NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

COST OF MATERIALS CONSUMED

ì` in lakh

DESCRIPTION

(a) Sugarcane (Refer note 20.1)  1,45,745 

(b) Raw Sugar  -  

(c) Others

` ` 2,851 Lakh).

ì` in lakh

(a) Sugar  4  -  

(b) Raw Sugar  -   -  

(c) Bio Products  6  77 

(d) Nutra Products  1,562  1,136 

NOTE 22

ì` in lakh

Work-in-process  1,674 

Finished goods  21,033  12,353 

Stock-in-trade  1,083 

 22,317  15,110 

Work-in-process  513 -

Finished goods  10,623 -

 11,136  -  

Work-in-process

Finished goods  70,783  21,033 

Stock-in-trade  481 

 73,613  22,317 
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ì` in lakh

(a) Salaries, Wages and Bonus

 841  744 

 1,404  1,061 

FINANCE COST

ì` in lakh

(a) Debentures  1,885  1,273 

(b) Other term loans  1,743 

(c) Other borrowing costs (Refer note 24.1)  3,588  2,687 

adjustment to borrowing costs
 1,253  740 

other ancillary costs.

IMITED 



NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 25

ì` in lakh

 4,541  4,820 

(b) Power and Fuel  2,427 

(c) Rent  323  181 

(d) Repairs and Maintenance (Refer note 33)

- Buildings  244  143 

- Plant and Machinery  4,357  2,626 

- Others  1,732  4,501 

(e) Insurance  502  328 

(f) Rates and Taxes (Refer note 25.1)  2,782 

(g) Packing, Despatching and Freight

(h) Commission to Selling Agents  123 

(i) Rebates and Discounts

 37  35 

(k) Directors' Fees and Commission (Refer note 35)  173  172 

 1,666 

(m) Fixed Assets scrapped  33  13 

(n) Professional Charges  1,740 

 327  1,026 

 1,428 

Less: Transfer from provision  (813)  615  326 

-

(r) Cane Development Expenditure  3,665 

Expenses
 3,748  2,120 

 1,265 

` 1,688 Lakh (2012 - ` 250 Lakh ) has been 

included in Rates and Taxes.

COMMITMENTS

ì` in lakh

account and not provided for net of advances

 1,824  1,688 

b) Uncalled liability on shares and other investments partly paid  Nil  Nil 

c) Other commitments - Purchase order given for items such as 

rawmaterials, services etc.,
 Nil 
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OTHER MONIES FOR WHICH THE COMPANY IS CONTINGENTLY LIABLE

ì` in lakh

Raw Materials, Spares and Capital Goods
 7,165 

term loan granted by them to Parrys Sugar Industries Limited, a 

subsidiary company

 3,263  18,000 

(c) Disputed Income Tax demands which are under various stages 

of appeal (out of which- ` 1,578 Lakh (2012 - ` 1,513 Lakh) have 

been deposited under protest)

 2,232 

(d) Disputed Sales Tax , Excise Duty , Service Tax and Customs Duty 

demands- (out of which - ` 157 Lakh (2012 - ` 122 Lakh), have 

been deposited under protest)

 5,610 

(e) Other claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts  173 

Courts.The liability of the Company in respect of these disputes 

of which is not currently ascertainable.

ì` in lakh

Loss on foreign currency monetary items
 (1,265)  12 

on forward exchange contracts and other instruments that are in 

substance a forward exchange contract

 -   (4)

As on March 31, 2013, the Company has foreign currency borrowings of US$ 5 million (2012 - US$ 4 Million). The 

`

(i) Forward exchange contracts (net) 142.01 611.62 Sell 7,473 

35.02 Sell 2,110 2,406 

(ii) ECB (Swaps) 50.00 50.00 Buy 2,488 2,488 

IMITED 



NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SCHEME OF ARRANGEMENT

In accordance with the Scheme

Company together with the shares issued to minority shareholders of the demerged company.

ì` in lakh

Fixed Assets (Net block including Capital WIP)  45,522 

Non Current Investments  1,363 

 Long Term Loans and Advances  2,688 

 Other Non- Current Assets  527 

Inventories  12,246 

Trade Receivables  4,248 

Cash and Cash Equivalents  264 

Short term loans and Advances  4,258 

Other Current Assets  7 

 71,123 

Long Term Borrowings  36,203 

 853 

 Short Term Borrowings

 Trade Payables  6,857 

 6,800 

Short Term Provisions

 5,438 

Less: Share capital issued (Note 30.2 )  18 

 

(Note 30.3)

 6,806 

Less: Preference Shares Cancelled (Note 30.4)  11,156 

Balance- Goodwill (Note 30.5)  12,542 

30.2) The Company has issued 18,38,578 equity shares of ` ` 18.38 Lakh to the shareholders 

`

each credited as fully paid up, for every nineteen equity shares of `
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30.3) The cost of the investments held in the Parrys Sugar Industries Ltd as appearing in the Company’s books has 

investments amounted to ` 6,806 Lakh.

`  

 in the Demerged Company has been cancelled. 

`  

 

 is ` 1,156 Lakh.

 

` 12,542 Lakh has been debited to Goodwill account. Such goodwill to the extent of ` 1,348 lakh has been 

adjusted against Capital Reserve Account and the balance amount of `

the General Reserve.

30.6) The results for the year ended March 31, 2013 also include the results of Haliyal and Sankili units of Demerged 

Company.

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS

 

` 321 lakh (Year ended March 31, 2012 -` ` 308 Lakh (Year ended 

March 31, 2012- ` ` 2 Lakh (Year ended March 31, 2012 -  

`

The following table sets forth the status of the Gratuity Plan of the Company and the amount recognized in the 

ì` in lakh

 1,240  1,053 

Current service cost  128 

Interest Cost  88  78 

 68 

 (278)  (148)

Expected return on plan assets  122  103 

 (278)  (148)

 (6)  -  

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

IMITED 



 1,287  1,150 

Fair value of plan assets at end of the period  1,382  1,242 

Current service cost  128 

Interest Cost  88  78 

Expected return on plan assets  (122)  (103)

 115  68 

Discount rate 8% 8%

Expected rate of planned assets 8% 8%

Expected rate of salary increases 5% 5%

Refer note 30.

report and hence, are not furnished.

in the interest rate declared by Trust over statutory limit. Having regard to the assets of the Fund and the return on the 

Discount rate 8% 8%

3% 3%

Expected rate of salary increases 5% 5%

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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ì` in lakh

a) Revenue expenses on Research and Development included under various 
 425  413 

 (65)  (86)

Net Revenue expenses on Research and Development

ì` in lakh

ì` in lakh

        (i) Audit Fees  17  17 

        (ii) Tax Audit  3  3 

        (iii) Fees for other services  15  14 

        (vi) Reimbursement of out of pocket expenses  2  1 

ì` in lakh

Salaries and Allowances  103 

 12  10 

 8  7 

Commission  40  38 

Note : 

ascertained separately.

ì` in lakh

Commission to Non Whole Time Directors  125  125 

 8 

ì` in lakh

Sugar  64,686  17,465 

Others  3,568 

Sugar  -  -  

Others  481 

Sugar

Others  60 

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

IMITED 



NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

 `  %  `  % 

Imported  0.17  0.86 

Indigenous

Raw Materials  1,63,728 

 Stores and Spare parts  6,566  4,356 

ì` in lakh

Raw Materials  -   218 

Components, Stores and Spare parts  23  4 

Traded Goods  250  21 

Capital Goods  148  -  

Travel  3  4 

Professional Fee  35 

Others  315  275 

 53,102  40,333 

Interest income  17  22 

Other Income- Despatch Money  47  -  

 187  -  

Others  6  -  

No. of shareholders  24 

No. of shares held  13,62,620 

` in lakh)  82  60 

Year to which Dividend relates to 
 2012-13 

Interim 

 2011-12 

Interim 
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e) The details of the grants under the aforesaid schemes are summarized below :

31.08.2007  18,58,200  31.08.2008 

 2,32,400 

24.01.2008  4,60,600 

24.04.2008  1,52,200 

28.07.2008  1,30,000 

 3,87,000 

 1,13,600 

 47,800  20.03.2010 

28.01.2011  3,66,300  28.01.2012 

27.07.2011  1,15,000 27.07.2012

24.10.2011 24.10.2012

`  

beginning of the year and exercisable
 4,15,814  101.33 

 7,37,840 

Total  11,53,654 

 -    -  

 245.60 

 2,65,810 

 2,47,502 

year and exercisable
 3,01,802  164.71 

 3,38,540 

IMITED 



NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

below

 

`

31.08.2007 18,58,200

2,32,400  26.32 

24.01.2008 4,60,600

24.04.2008 1,52,200

28.07.2008 1,30,000  26.63 

3,87,000  24.11 

1,13,600  30.73 

47,800  32.26 

28.01.2011

28.01.2011 36,700  87.86 

41,400

34,500  58.18 

27.07.2011 1,15,000  105.80 

24.10.2011 75,700  80.86 

24.10.2011  30.21 

` 1,470 Lakh (2012 - `

be

Decrease in Earning per share (`) : (Basic )     :    0.10

Decrease in Earning per share (`) : (Diluted)  :     0.10

regard are as follows:

Risk Free Interest Rate:   :  8%

Expected Dividend Yield   :  400%

Sugar Power Spirits Neem & Corporate & Others

Europe
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

`  33,171  13,732 

Number of equity shares of `

of the year
 17,36,62,476 

Add : Number of shares issued pursuant to exercise of Employees 
 2,65,810  4,64,276 

Add : Number of shares issued to PSIL Shareholders pursuant to 

merger (Refer note 30)
 18,38,578 -

(a) Number of equity Shares of `

the year
 17,57,66,864  17,36,62,476 

(b) Weighted Average number of Equity Shares  17,34,44,175 

(c) Diluted shares on account of issue of ESOP granted  -   

`

the end of the year
 17,36,83,161 

– Basic (`

– Diluted (`

2. Parry Chemicals Ltd

4. Coromandel Brasil Limitada – Partnership.

5. Liberty Phosphate Ltd

6. Liberty Urvarak Limited

8. Dare Investments Ltd

11. Sabero Australia Pty.Ltd

12. Sabero Organics America Ltda

14. Parrys Sugar Industries Ltd

15. Alagawadi Bireshwar Sugars Private Limited

16. Sadashiva Sugars Ltd

17. Parry America Inc.,

18. Parrys Investments Limited

20. Parry Infrastructure Company Private Limited  

21. Parry Phytoremedies Private Limited  

23. Parry Agrochem Exports Limited  

25. La Belle Botanics LLC   

26. Silkroad Sugar Private Limited (From December 12, 2012)  
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Silkroad Sugar Private Limited (Upto December 11, 2012)

1. Murugappa Holdings Limited

Mr. Ravindra S Singhvi, Managing Director 

ì` in lakh

KMP KMP 

a. Parry America Inc.  2,855  -    -    2,105  -    -   

b. Parry Phytoremedies Private Limited  520  -    -    246 

 361  -    -    258  -    -   

 418  -    -    725  -    -   

e. Parrys Sugar Industries Limited  -    -    -    3  -    -   

 -    -    70  -    -   

b. Silkroad Sugar Private Limited  1  -    -    -    3  -   

c. Parry Infrastructure Company Private Limited  301  -    -    318  -    -   

d. Parrys Sugar Industries Limited *  21 - - - - -

 31,888  -    -    12,401  -    -   

 17  -    -    44  -    -   

  b. Silkroad Sugar Private Limited  22  -    -   -  65  -   

  c. Sadashiva Sugars Ltd  -  -    -    14  -    -   

  d. Parrys Sugar Industries Limited*  -    -    460  -    -   

  e. Parry Infrastructure Company Private Limited  -    -    -    8  -    -   

 28  -    -    48  -    -   

b. Parry Phytoremedies Private Limited  143  -    -    -    -   

 1  -    -    6  -    -   

d. Parrys Sugar Industries Limited  528  -    -    -    -    -   

e. Sadashiva Sugars Ltd  277  -    -    -    -    -   

 126  -    -    85  -    -   

 18 - - - - -

a. Sadashiva Sugars Limited  865  -    -    218  -    -   

b. Parry Infrastructure Company Private Limited  27  -    -    242  -    -   

c. Parrys Sugar Industries Limited *  -    -    1,334  -    -   

 18  -    -    -    -   

e. Parry Phytoremedies Private Limited  35  -    -    31  -    -   

f. Silkroad Sugars Private Limited  8 - - - - -

IMITED 



KMP KMP 

 1,651 - - - - -

a. Silkroad Sugar Private Limited  3,557  -    -    -    11,250  -   

b. Parrys Sugar Industries Limited *  -    -    -    -    -    -   

-  -    -    2,230  -    -   

d. Sadashiva Sugars Limited (Refer note 45.3.1)  5,000  -    -    1,834  -    -   

Parrys Sugar Industries Limited (Refer note 45.3.2)  1,500  -    -    10,000  -    -   

 26,573  -    -    -    -    -   

a. Parrys Sugar Industries Limited (Refer note 

45.3.2)
 1,500  -    -    (8,335)  -    -   

b. Parry Infrastructure Company Private Limited - 

(Repaid)
 (2,450)  -    -    (614)  -    -   

 1,522  -    -    4,172  -    -   

d. Parry Phytoremidies Private Limited  -   -   10  -    -   

 (116)  -    -    (12)  -    -   

 f. Silkroad Sugar Private Limited - - - - -

 -    -    -    -   

b. Parry America Inc.  1,261  -    -    745  -    -   

c. Parry Phytoremedies Private Limited  1,715  -    -    1,221  -    -   

 133  -    -    -    -   

e. Silkroad Sugar Private Limited  278  -    -    -    245  -   

f. Sadashiva Sugars Ltd  7,081  -    -    4,767  -    -   

g. Parry Infrastructure Company Private Limited  357  -    -    -    -   

h.Parry Agrochem Exports Ltd  2  -    -    2  -    -   

i. Parrys Sugar Industries Limited  *  -    -    -    -   

j.Alagawadi Bireshwar Sugar Pvt Ltd.  1,350  -    -    -    -    -   

Parry America Inc.,  514  -    -    514  -    -   

arrangement (demerger)- (Refer note 30), Sankili and Haliyal units of Parrys Sugar Industries Limited have merged with 

the Company.

45.3.1  During the year ` 5,000 Lakh has been converted into Equity shares out of the loans given to Sadashiva Sugars 

Limited.

45.3.2 During the year ` 1,500 Lakh has been converted into Preference shares out of the loans given to Parrys Sugar 

Industries Limited.

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ì` in lakh
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

46. Mr. Ravindra S Singhvi, Managing Director resigned from the Company on April 10, 2013 and Mr. P. Gopalakrishnan 

has been appointed as the Manager by the Board of Directors, subject to the approval of the Shareholders.

are not comparable with that of the previous year.

                      On behalf of the Board

     

       

IMITED 



CONSOLIDATED 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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We have audited the accompanying consolidated 

  

comprise the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31st  

Loss and the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for 

The Company’s Management is responsible for the 

and maintenance of internal control relevant to the 

are free from material misstatement, whether due to 

fraud or error.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these 

audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with 

Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards require 

that we comply with the ethical requirements and plan 

and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 

are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit 

evidence about the amounts and the disclosures in 

selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including 

the assessment of the risks of material misstatement 

to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, 

the auditor considers internal control relevant to 

and fair view in order to design audit procedures that 

are  appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the 

of the Company’s internal control. An audit also includes 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained 

(Previous year ended 31st March 2012 : six 

total assets (net) of ` 15,286 lakh as at 31st March 

2013 (As at 31st March 2012: ` 15,165 lakh), total 

revenue of ` 271 lakh (Previous year ended 31st 

March 2012: `

` 146 lakh (Previous year ended 

31st March  2012: `

on that date, as considered in the consolidated 

(net) of `

at 31st December 2011 : ̀

of ` Nil (Previous year ended 31st December 2011:  

`  

` 305 lakh (Previous year ended 31st December  

` 3,127 lakh) for the year 

ended on that date, as considered in the consolidated 

the Management has not made any adjustments 

audited last for the year ended 31st December 2011.

Our opinion, in so far as it relates to the amounts 

included in respect of these subsidiaries and jointly 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS TO 

IMITED 



statements give a true and fair view in conformity with 

(a) in the case of the Consolidated Balance Sheet, of the 

ended on that date; and

(c) in the case of the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement, 

that date. 

`

31st March 2013, total revenues of `

` 1,716 Lakh 

for the year ended on that date, as considered in the 

` 1,013 lakh 

statements for the year ended 31st December 

the other auditors.

have been audited by other auditors whose reports 

have been furnished to us by the Management and 

our opinion, in so far as it relates to the amounts and 

disclosures included in respect of these subsidiaries 

reports of the other auditors. 

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS

Chartered Accountants 

 Partner
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ì` in lakh

(a) Share Capital 2  1,758  1,737 

(b) Reserves and Surplus 3  2,41,524  2,40,648 

(a) Long Term Borrowings 4  2,01,755 

45.1  32,148 

5.1  27  1,252 

(d) Long Term Provisions 5.2  1,851  1,768 

(a) Short Term Borrowings 6

(b) Trade Payables 7

8  88,853  75,324 

(d) Short Term Provisions  11,272  3,036 

TOTAL

(a) Fixed Assets 10

(i) Tangible Assets

(ii) Intangible Assets  2,883  3,106 

(iii) Capital Work in Progress  60,506 

46.1  47,605 

(c) Non Current Investments 11  16,136  15,113 

(d) Deferred tax assets (net) 45.2  601  601 

(e) Long Term Loans and Advances 12  12,845 

(f) Trade Receivables 15  -    526 

(g) Other Non-Current Assets 17

(a) Current Investments 13  1,820  484 

(b) Inventories 14  2,67,073  2,47,265 

(c) Trade Receivables 15  2,03,367  1,22,825 

(d) Cash and Cash Equivalents 16  56,635  1,04,711 

(e) Short Term Loans and Advances 12  2,24,340 

(f) Other current assets 17  17,571 

TOTAL

See accompanying notes forming part of the Consolidated 1-48

 

    

     

April 30, 2013     April 30, 2013

IMITED 



ì` in lakh

18  11,57,530  12,65,076 

Less: Excise Duty

Other Income  10,701 

Cost of materials consumed 20  7,28,805  7,75,565 

Purchases of Stock-in-Trade 21  1,53,643 

and stock in trade
22  (54,177)  (26,765)

23  32,368 

Finance costs 24  38,778 

` 14 Lakh (2012 

: ` 14 Lakh)

10  21,515 

Other expenses 25  1,52,616 

 51,856  82,886 

27  -    3,553 

(a) Current Tax  12,601 

 (750)

(c) Deferred Tax  14,187  (2,572)

Total

8. Minority Interest  (15,633)

` 43

   (a) Basic (`)  18.03 

   (b) Diluted (`)  18.00 

See accompanying notes forming part of the Consolidated 1-48

    

    

    

    

April 30, 2013     April 30, 2013
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ì` in lakh

 21,515 

Finance cost  38,778 

Interest Income  (6,262)  (5,745)

Dividend income  (1,563)  (2,640)

 (322)

Net loss on sale of  investments  -    5,275 

investments
 47  -   

note 33)

 -   

 6,586  14,060 

back
 (413)

receivables, loans and advances
3,084  2,567 

168  306 

Provision for impairment of investment in 

subsidiary
62,411  -   54,523 

Trade and other receivables  (88,303)

Inventories   (8,650)  (20,418)

(18,048) (68,512)

65,344 

Direct taxes net of refund (12,400) (28,352)

advances
 (45,758)  (45,245)

 783  1,012 

Purchase of investments  (8,41,401)

Amounts paid for acquiring investments in 

subsidiary companies 
 (26,075)

Sale of investments 

Interest received  4,248  7,473 

Amount transferred to Escrow account  (11,301)  -   

 1,563  2,716 

IMITED 



Proceeds from issue of Equity shares on exercise 

of ESOP
 366 

Proceeds from long term borrowings  55,835 

Repayment of long term borrowings  (24,820)

Proceeds from other term borrowings (net)  32,820  7,247 

 (54,881)

Interest paid  (40,828)

Dividends paid including tax thereon  (21,868)  (17,807)

Cash and cash equivalents as at 1st April 2012

subsidiary
 284 

Add: Cash and Cash equivalents on conversion of 
 327  -   

ì` in lakh

Cash & cash equivalents as per Consolidated Balance sheet (Refer note 16)  56,635  1,04,711 

 (i) In other deposit accounts - original maturity more than 3 months  463  134 

 (ii) Balance in earmarked accounts

     - Unclaimed Dividend accounts  1,714  1,681 

     - Balances held as Margin money  3,601  1,557 

     - Escrow account   11,301  -   

 Current investments considered as part of Cash and cash equivalents  -    300 

    

    

    

     

April 30, 2013     April 30, 2013

 

ì` in lakh
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Inputs business through its subsidiary, Coromandel 

100% stake in Sadashiva Sugars Limited and a 65% 

stake in Parrys Sugar Industries Limited.

EID Parry together with its subsidiaries has nine sugar 

factories having a capacity to crush 34,750 Tonnes of 

Cane per day, generate 146 MW of power and four 

in the growing wellness segment mainly catering to 

the world markets with its organic products.

Company and its subsidiaries and jointly controlled 

on the basis of going concern, under the historic 

are carried at revalued amounts, in accordance with 

Standards) Rules, 2006 (as amended) and the 

E.I.D.-Parry (India) Limited (‘the Company’) and its 

prepared on the following basis.

the Company and its Subsidiaries have been 

adding together the book values of like items of   

Private Ltd has been accounted for using 

as per AS 21 - Consolidated Financial Statements.

between Group companies are eliminated. 

among all group companies is ensured to the 

subsidiary - Parry America Inc is considered as 

its subsidiaries of their investments in their 

Goodwill is tested for impairment as at the end 

(vii)Minority Interest in the Net Assets of the 

Subsidiaries consists of:

at the date on which the investment in the 

Subsidiary is made;

Equity since the date the Parent - Subsidiary 

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

NOTES FORMINING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

IMITED 



ì` in lakh

Parry Chemicals Limited (PCHL) India - -

Parry America Inc. (PAI) USA  100.00 -  100.00 -

India - -

Sabero Organics Gujarat Limited (SOGL) India -  46.86 -  46.75 

Netherlands - -

Sabero Australia Pty.Ltd (Sabero Australia) Australia - -

Sabero Organics America SA (SOAL) Brazil -  62.55 -  62.65 

- -

Parry Infrastructure Company Pvt Ltd  

(PICPL)

India  100.00 -  100.00 -

Parrys Investments Limited (PIL) India  100.00 -  100.00 -

Parrys Sugar Limited (PSL) India  100.00 -  100.00 -

Parry Phytoremedies  Private  Limited 

(PPPL)  

India  62.78 -  62.78 -

- -

Coromandel Brasil Limitada (CBL) Brazil

Sadashiva Sugars Limited (SSL) India  100.00 -  100.00 -

USA  100.00 -  100.00 -

Parrys Sugar Industries Limited (PSIL) India  65.00 -  65.00 -

Silkroad Sugar Private Limited (SSPL)* India - - -

Alagawadi Bireshwar Sugars Private Limited 

(ABSPL)

India  100.00 - -  65.00 

Parry Agrochem Exports Limited (PAEL)                                                           India  81.00  81.00 

Switzerland -  100.00 -  100.00 

La Belle Botanics LLC (LBBL) USA -  100.00 -  100.00 

Liberty Phosphate Limited (LPL) India -  33.56 - -

Liberty Urvarak Limited (LUL) India - - -

(LPFL)

India - - -

Dare Investments Limited (DIL) India - - -

*became subsidiary during the year 2012-13

1.4.1 The above excludes Sabero Organics Philippines Asia Inc., an Associate of Sabero for which monies advanced  

(`
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1.4.3 In respect of CBL, CML and CGPL (Coromandel 

and since the audit is not completed, unaudited 

statement will be adjusted in the subsequent year.

1, 2012 to March 31, 2013 has been considered 

audit has not yet been completed, unaudited 

1, 2013 to March 31, 2013 are not available and 

will be adjusted in the subsequent year.

1.4.6 During the year, the Company has increased its 

stake in Silkroad Sugar Private limited, from 50% 

` 3,557 Lakh. 

Private Limited has become a subsidiary of the 

extent of the Company’s equity interest.

These are set out in the notes to accounts under 

statements of the Company and its subsidiaries 

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

statements in conformity with Indian GAAP  

during the year. The Management believes that the 

(i) Inventories other than by-products are valued 

at lower of cost and net realisable value.

overheads  incurred in bringing such inventories 

(iii) In respect of raw materials, boughtout items, 

consumables and stores and spares, cost is 

determined based on weighted average cost 

basis.

(iv) Inventories of by-products are valued at 

 In respect of E.I.D.-Parry (India) Limited, 

holding company, the cost (Net of Cenvat 

Credits where applicable) in case of raw 

materials is determined on a moving weighted 

average basis, whereas in case of subsidiary 

and Parry Phytoremedies Private Ltd, the cost 

basis.

of such subsidiaries have been considered for 

inventory held by these subsidiary companies 

as on March 31, 2013 aggregates to ` 61,026 

Lakh. (2012 – ` 1,00,341 Lakh).

Cash comprises cash on hand and demand 

deposits with banks. Cash equivalents are short-

term balances (with an original maturity of three 

known amounts of cash and which are subject to 

NOTES FORMINING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

IMITED 



of non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals 

of past or future cash receipts or payments. The 

revalued land and buildings and leased assets) 

is calculated on Straight line method.

(iii) Leased assets are fully depreciated over the 

charge is provided on pro-rata basis. Assets 

`

calculated on the original cost is recouped from 

useful lives, ranging from 13 to 20 years.

(i) Sales are recognized, net of returns and trade 

discounts when risks and rewards of ownership 

are transferred to the buyer under the terms 

of the contract. Sales include excise duty but 

exclude sales tax and value added tax.

Book Scheme are treated as income in the year 

(iii) Dividend income is accounted for in year 

in which the right to receive payment is 

established.

(iv) Subsidy is recognised on the basis of the rates 

of India in accordance with the Nutrient 

basis taking into account the amounts invested 

and the rate of interest on an accrual basis.

(vi) Income from services rendered is booked 

is recognised when the Group enters into 

an agreement for sale with the buyer and 

transferred to the buyer. Revenue from real 

Tangible Fixed Assets (other than those which have 

been revalued) are carried at cost less accumulated 

its purchase price net of any trade discounts and 

than those subsequently recoverable from the tax 

on making the asset ready for its intended 

use, other incidental expenses and interest on 

its intended use. Machinery spares which can 

asset and whose use is expected to be irregular 

are capitalised and depreciated over the useful 

life of the principal item of the relevant assets. 

expenditure results in an increase in the future 

assessed standard of performance. In respect of 

NOTES FORMINING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Leasehold land and leasehold improvements are 

Capital Work in Progress: Projects under which 

intended use and other capital work-in-progress 

are carried at cost, comprising direct cost, related 

to which the expenditure is indirectly related to 

by the Company are accounted at the exchange 

or at rates that closely approximate the rate at 

in foreign currencies entered into by the 

accounted at the exchange rates prevailing 

closely approximate the rate at the date of the 

 Net investment in non-integral foreign 

or at rates that closely approximate the rate at 

translated at the exchange rates prevailing 

closely approximate the rate at the date of the 

(b) Measurement at the Balance Sheet date

 Foreign currency monetary items (other 

outstanding at the Balance Sheet date are 

restated at the year-end rates. Non-monetary 

items of the Company are carried at historical 

cost.

contracts) of the Company’s integral foreign 

date are restated at the year-end rates. Non-

monetary items of the Company’s integral 

 Net investment in non-integral foreign 

Company’s net investment in non-integral 

Sheet date are restated at the year-end rates.

translated at the year-end rates.

 In respect of forward contracts entered into to 

hedge risks associated with foreign currency 

as income or expense over the period of 

contracts outstanding as at the Balance Sheet 

date are marked to market and the resultant 

is recognized as income or expense in the 

 

 

The premium or discount arising at the 

income over the life of the contract. Exchange 

which the exchange rates change.

NOTES FORMINING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

IMITED 



Long-term investments are carried individually 

temporary, in the value of such investments. 

Current investments are carried individually, at the 

lower of cost and fair value. Cost of investments 

scheme, gratuity fund, compensated absences, 

long service awards and post-employment medical 

fund and employee state insurance scheme 

as an expense based on the amount of 

using the Projected Unit Credit method, with 

Balance Sheet date. Actuarial gains and losses 

are recognised in the Consolidated Statement 

they occur. Past service cost is recognised 

on a straight-line basis over the average 

the Consolidated Balance Sheet represents the 

as adjusted for unrecognised past service cost,  

as reduced by the fair value of scheme assets. 

limited to past service cost, plus the present 

The undiscounted amount of short-term 

in exchange for the services rendered by 

employees are recognised during the year 

when the employees render the service. 

and compensated absences which are 

expected to occur within twelve months 

employee renders the related service.  

 

The cost of short-term compensated absences 

is accounted as under :

(i) in case of accumulated compensated 

absences, when employees render the 

future compensated absences; and

absences, when the absences occur.

Compensated absences which are not expected 

of the period in which the employee renders 

the related service are recognised as a liability 

fair value of the plan assets out of which the 

Service Awards are recognised as a liability 

Scheme and Employee Stock Purchase 

Exchange Board of India. The Company follows 

if any, is recognized as deferred employee 

NOTES FORMINING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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arising from foreign currency borrowings to the 

extent they are regarded as an adjustment to 

borrowing of funds to the extent not directly 

the tenure of the loan. Borrowing costs, allocated to 

of borrowing costs is suspended and charged to 

qualifying assets is interrupted.

based on the dominant source, nature of risks 

resources and in assessing performance.

the Group. Segment revenue, segment expenses, 

segment. 

 

Inter-segment revenue is accounted on the basis 

 

relate to the Group as a whole and are not allocable 

to segments on reasonable basis have been 

as an expense in the revenue account as per the 

lease terms.

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the 

of extraordinary items, if any) by the weighted 

average number of equity shares outstanding 

during the year. Diluted earnings per share is 

items, if any) as adjusted for dividend, interest and 

average number of equity shares considered for 

deriving basic earnings per share and the weighted 

average number of equity shares which could 

Current tax is determined on the basis of taxable 

income and tax credits computed for each of 

Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) paid in accordance 

with  the tax laws, which gives future economic 

tax liability, is considered as an asset if there is 

convincing evidence that the Company will pay 

normal income tax. Accordingly, MAT is recognised 

as an asset in the Balance Sheet when it is probable 

period and are capable of reversal in one or more 

subsequent periods.  Deferred tax is measured 

using the tax rates and the tax laws enacted 

losses only to the extent that reasonable certainty 

NOTES FORMINING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

IMITED 



be available against which these can be realised.  

and carry forward of losses, deferred tax assets 

are recognised only if there is virtual certainty 

available to realise the assets.  Deferred tax assets 

on income levied by the same governing tax laws 

each Balance Sheet date for their realisability.

Insurance claims are accounted for on the basis of 

the extent that there is no uncertainty in receiving 

the claims.

Revenue expenditure pertaining to research is 

and Loss. Development costs of products are also 

and Loss unless a product’s technical feasibility has 

been established, in which case such expenditure 

is capitalised. The amount capitalised comprises 

allocated on a reasonable and consistent basis to 

and development are capitalised and depreciated 

in accordance with the policies stated for Fixed 

Assets.

units at each Balance Sheet date are reviewed 

exists, the recoverable amount of such assets is 

carrying amount of these assets exceeds their 

recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is 

the greater of the net selling price and their value 

on an appropriate discount factor. When there is 

exists or may have decreased, such reversal of 

impairment loss is recognised in the Statement of 

Provisions are recognized only when there is a 

within the control of the company or (ii) present 

The Company uses foreign currency forward 

contracts to hedge its risks associated with 

designates such forward contracts in a cash 

in the fair value of these forward contracts that are 

when the hedging instrument expires or is sold, 

NOTES FORMINING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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hedging instrument for highly probable 

 

 

market and losses are recognised in the Statement 

NOTES FORMINING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Service tax input credit is accounted for in the 

books in the period in which the underlying 

service received is accounted and when there is no 

or cash equivalents, the Group has determined its 

and non-current.

IMITED 



NOTE 2

ì` in lakh

AUTHORISED :

51,50,00,000 Equity Shares of `  5,150  5,150 

(2012 - 51,50,00,000 Equity Shares of `

50,00,000 Redeemable Preference Shares of ` 5,000 5,000

(2012 - 50,00,000 Redeemable Preference Shares of `

17,57,66,864 Equity Shares of `  1,758  1,737 

(2012 - 17,36,62,476 Equity Shares of ` 

` 

equity shares of ` 

2.3 Details of shares held by each shareholder holding more than 5 percent of equity shares in the company:

ì` in lakh

% %

Murugappa Holdings Limited   
 5,87,35,204 33.42  5,87,35,204 33.82

Ambadi Investment Private Ltd 5.30 5.37

5.18  -    -   

 

Reliance Growth Fund
 -    -    33,80,148 

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

ì` ` 

` 

At the beginning of the period 17,36,62,476 1,737 1,732 

Allotment of shares on exercise of Employee Stock 
2,65,810  3  4,64,276  5 

Allotment of shares pursuant to Scheme of 
 18,38,578  18  -    -   

The Company has only one class of Equity share having a par value of ` 

the number of equity shares held.

shareholders is ` `

RESERVES AND SURPLUS

ì` in lakh

Opening balance  21,786  21,067 

Add :Premium on shares issued during the year  442 

Closing balance

Opening balance  2,750  1,167 

and Loss (Refer note 3.1)

 5,053  1,583 

 1,250  -   

Closing balance

Opening balance  540  554 

- -

(Refer note 3.2)

 14  14 

Closing balance

IMITED 



NOTES FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ì` in lakh

Opening balance  1,41,452  1,10,052 
Add :Transferred from Surplus in Consolidated Statement of  60,000  31,400 

 2,120  -   
 -   

Closing balance

Opening balance  4 

instruments outstanding at the end of the year

 412  -   

 -    401 
Closing balance

Opening balance  2,234  747 
 1,487 

 -  
Closing balance

Opening Balance 
 31,270 

Interim Dividend on Equity Shares -` `

per share)

 10,438 

 2,246  3,208 
 3,803  1,583 

Transfer to General Reserve  60,000  31,400 
Closing Balance

Opening balance  (54,287)
 22,833  (4,683)

Closing balance

` 5,053 Lakh (2012 - ` 1,583 Lakh) by transfer from 

` 45,850 Lakh (2012 - ` 

` 14 Lakh (2012 - `
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

LONG TERM BORROWINGS

ì` in lakh

2012-13 series (Refer note 4.1)
 10,000  -    -    -   

2012-13 series (Refer note 4.2)
 6,000  -    -    -   

2011-12 series (Refer note 4.3)
 6,000  6,000  -    -   

2011-12 series (Refer note 4.4)
 4,000  4,000 -  -   

2010-11 series (Refer note 4.5)
 -    4,000  4,000  -   

 -    -    -    5,000 

Bonus debentures of `
 15,850  -    -    -   

Banks  1,03,188  16,421  13,855 

Government of India - Sugar Development Fund  8,115  2,172  1,643 

 2,500  8  -   

 -    -    -   

Secured Borrowings  1,37,137 

Unsecured Borrowings  2,500  8  -   

(Note 8)
 -    -    (22,601)

` ` 10,000 lakh to 

be secured by a pari passu

` ` 6,000 lakh are 

secured  by a pari passu

situated at Pugalur. Debentures are redeemable in full at par on 23rd October 2015.

` ` 6,000 lakh are 

secured  by a pari passu

pari passu

` ` 4,000 lakh are 

secured  by a pari passu

IMITED 



pari passu

` ` 4,000 lakh are 

secured by a pari passu

pari passu

` ` 5,000 lakh are 

secured by a pari passu

pari passu

full at par on 4th September 2012.

`

`

and it carries interest rates ranging 4% - 13% per annum.

4.10 There is no default in repayment of the loans and interest thereon

OTHER LONG TERM LIABILITIES

ì` in lakh

(a) Trade Payables  -   853

(b) Other payables  27 

ì` in lakh

(a) For Gratuity  377  360 

(b) For Compensated absences  1,003  772 

 471  635 

 -    1 

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SHORT TERM BORROWINGS

ì` in lakh

(a) Loans repayable on demand

From Banks

(i) Secured (Refer note 6.1)  76,837  81,168 

(ii) Unsecured (Refer note 6.2)  1,46,357  2,10,824 

(b) Short term loans

From Banks

(i) Secured (Refer note 6.1)  -   

(ii) Unsecured (Refer note 6.2)  -   

(c) Commercial Papers - Unsecured  35,500  4,000 

(d) Security Deposits - Unsecured  42  36 

(e) Inter-corporate deposits  -    2,000 

(f) Loans from others

-  20 

6.2 Unsecured short-term borrowings comprises buyers credit denominated in foreign currency, packing credit facility 

from banks.

TRADE PAYABLES

ì` in lakh

Trade payables (Refer note 7.1):

 (a) Acceptances  86,061 

 (b) Other than Acceptances  1,48,747 

 -   

IMITED 



NOTES FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

ì` in lakh

 22,601 

(b) Interest accrued but not due on borrowings  4,644  3,610 

(c) Interest accrued but not due on others  610  531 

(d) Interest accrued and due on borrowings  24  -   

(e) Unclaimed dividends (Refer note 8.1 and 8.2)  1,687 

 7,775  4,412 

 28,226  23,707 

 23,254  17,255 

 -    3,624 

8.1 These amounts represent warrants issued to the Shareholders which remained unpresented as at March 31, 2013.

` 2,254 lakh held back in accordance with the share 

ì` in lakh

(a) Provision for  compensated absences  1,031  827 

 506  723 

(c) Provision for Dividend and Tax on dividend proposed by subsidiary  7,010  1,375 

(d) Provision for tax net of advance tax  2,721  -   

(e) Provision for others  4  87 

 -    24 
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

 ì` in lakh

(A) Trade Investments

(a) Investments in Equity Instruments

(i) Other Companies  44  33 

(A) Trade Investments

(a) Investments in Equity Instruments

(i) Other companies  14,853 

(B) Other Investments

(a)  Investments in Equity Instruments

(i) Other companies  234  162 

 1  1 

(c)  Investments in debentures or bonds

 64  64 

 (141)  -   

LOANS AND ADVANCES ì              ` in lakh

(a) Capital Advances  3,740  6,887  -    -   

(b) Security Deposits  6,656  101  46 

(c) Advance Income Tax (net of provisions)  3,062  322  53 

 3,548 

 6,325  125  2,180 

(f) Government Subsidies receivable -  -    1,37,558 

 

(Refer note 12.1)
 2,168  -    -    -   

(h) Advance recoverable in cash or in kind or for  value to 

be received

(i) Unsecured and Considered Good  144  58,554 

 1,125  242  1,131 

 (1,125)  (242)  (1,131)

-  12 -  376 

IMITED 



NOTES FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CURRENT INVESTMENTS

ì` in lakh

(A) Trade Investments

(a) Investments in Equity Instruments

(i) Other companies  4  4 

(B) Other Investments

(a)  Investments in Equity Instruments

(i) Other companies  5  40 

(C) Investments in Mutual Funds

 -    2 

(A) Other Investments

 1  -   

(B) Investments in Mutual Funds  1,810  438 

13.1 Out of the above, Current investments considered as Cash and Cash Equivalent amounts to Nil (2012- ` 300 lakh)

INVENTORIES  

(At lower of cost and net realisable value) ì                         ` in lakh

(a) Raw materials  62,600 

(b) Work-in-process (Refer note 14.2)  5,822  8,714 

(c) Finished goods

(d) Stock-in-trade (goods acquired for trading)  26,580  34,660 

(e) Stores and spares

 -    227 

14.2 Includes ` ` 3,720 Lakh) of property development expenses held as Inventory by a subsidiary.

14.3 Finished goods as at 31st March 2013 is net of provision for obselete inventory.
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

TRADE RECEIVABLES

ì` in lakh

(a) Trade receivables outstanding for a 

period exceeding six months from 

the date they were due for payment 

(i) Secured - Considered good  -    -    730  230 

(ii) Unsecured - Considered good  -    526  12,356  6,146 

 -    -    2,338 

 -    -    (2,338)

(b) Other Trade Receivables

(i) Secured - Considered good  -    -    5,303  5,871 

(ii) Unsecured - Considered good  -    -   

(c) Other receivables - Considered good  -    -    -   

 

(Refer note 1.4.6)
 -    -    -    1 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

ì` in lakh

(a) Cash on hand  253  75 

 815 

(c) Balances with banks

(i) In Current account

(ii) In Deposit account  17,041  56,372 

(iii) In earmarked accounts

-  In Dividend account  1,714  1,681 

-  Margin Money account  3,601  1,557 

-  Escrow account  11,301 -

-

is ` `

IMITED 



NOTES FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OTHER ASSETS

ì` in lakh

(a)  Income Accrued on  Deposits etc. -  -    5,020 

(b)  Unbillled revenue - -

(c)  Mark to market provision - -  240 -

(d)  Others  -    368  -   

- -  -   

REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS

ì` in lakh

(a) Sales of Products (Refer note 18.1 for details)  8,51,165 

(b) Sales of services  156  434 

(c) Government Subsidies

 13,521 

 84  16,185 

ì` in lakh

Farm inputs  5,13,280 

Sugar  1,74,186 

Sale of Flats  6,250  5,536 

Others  57,560  51,013 

OTHER INCOME

ì` in lakh

(a) Interest Income  6,262  5,745 

(b) Dividend Income 

(i)  Current investments  1,228 

(ii)  Long term investments  335  656 

 180  338 

 1,710  1,878 

 -    100 
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

COST OF MATERIALS CONSUMED            ì` in lakh

(a) Farm Inputs

(b) Raw Material for Sugar Business (Refer note 20.1)  1,83,821  1,61,308 

(c) Others  23,634 

` 826 lakh)

ì` in lakh

CLASSES OF GOODS

(a) Farm Inputs  1,52,071 

(b) Sugar  4  -   

(c) Others  1,568  1,213 

NOTE 22

ì` in lakh

Work-in-process  5,237 

Finished goods  86,255 

Stock-in-trade  34,660  6,513 

Work-in-process  43 -

Finished goods  5,458 -

 5,501 -

Work-in-process  5,127 

Finished goods

Stock-in-trade  26,580  34,660 

 (54,178)

 1 

ì` in lakh

(a) Salaries, Wages and Bonus

 2,431  2,138 

 3,763 

 44  222 

IMITED 



NOTES FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCE COSTS               ` in lakh

(a) Debentures  2,870  1,273 

(b) Other term loans  27,812  21,736 

(c) Other borrowing costs (Refer note 24.1)  5,650  3,726 

adjustment to borrowing costs
 1,255  740 

 1,888 

other ancillary costs.

NOTE 25

` in lakh

(b) Power and Fuel  21,678  13,772 
(c) Rent  2,880  2,603 
(d) Repairs and Maintenance

- Building  714  330 
- Plant and  Machinery  7,378  6,670 
- Others  3,847  3,040  10,040 

(e) Insurance  1,370  1,118 
(f) Rates and Taxes (Refer note 25.1)  4,723 
(g) Packing, Despatching and Freight  58,056  54,164 
(h) Commission to Selling Agents  281  203 
(i) Rebates and Discounts  20 
(j) Directors' Fees and Commission  303 

 1,738 
(l) Fixed Assets scrapped  33  16 
(m) Professional Charges  3,581  3,014 

 2,467  2,226 

 1,430  341 

Less: Transfer from provision  (813)  617  -    341 

(p) Impairment of investment in subsidiary  -   

(q) Impairment of Other investments  47  -   

(r) Loss on sale of investments  1  -   

 226  -   

 -    5,275 

 

Expenses
 25,517  23,761 

 
 15,325 

 252  3,601 
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(a) Liberty Phosphate Limited :

promoters of LPL at a price of ̀   

March 7, 2013, LPL became a subsidiary of CIL. CIL also made a detailed public announcement to acquire upto 

` 

`

(b) Liberty Urvarak Limited:

` 7,800 Lakh thereby making  LUL a 

controlling stakes (100%) in LUL, CIL along with LUL holds 77,42,334 (53.62%) equity shares of LPL.

subsidiary of the Company, had acquired 1,05,00,000 (31%) equity shares of Sabero Organics Gujarat Limited 

(Sabero) at a price of `

` 3,553 lakh paid to the erstwhile Indian promoters of Sabero as per the Share 

December, 2012.

`

owned subsidiary of the Company, by conversion of ` 5,000 lakh of Unsecured loan.

The Company also acquired 150 Lakh of Preference shares of `

conversion of ` 1,500 lakh of Unsecured loan.

Pursuant to the Scheme of Arrangement (the Scheme), between Parry Sugar Industries Limited (Demerged 

IMITED 



NOTES FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

`

`

nineteen equity shares of ` ` 

`

COMMITMENTS

` in lakh

account and not provided for net of advances

(ii) Uncalled liability on shares and other investments partly paid *  12,308  380 

(iii) Other commitments - Purchase order given for items such as 

rawmaterials, services etc.,

 248  1,258 

 *Excludes `

has been deposited in escrow account.

terms of which Coromandel has undertaken that it shall not reduce its shareholding in the subsidiary below 51%. 

` 174 lakh  

(2012 - ` 273 lakh)

OTHER MONIES FOR WHICH THE COMPANY IS CONTINGENTLY LIABLE

` in lakh

of Raw Materials, Spares and Capital Goods
 10,424  8,504 

term loan granted by them to Parrys Sugar Industries Limited, a 

subsidiary company

 3,263  18,000 

 6,716 

(TIFERT), a joint venture company

 26,330 

(v) Corporate Guarantees given by the Company to banks in respect 

of crop loans to farmers and H&T loan etc.,
 3,702 

(vi) Disputed Income Tax Demands which are under various stages of 

Appeal
 2,857 

(vii)Disputed Sales Tax, Excise Duty and Custom Duty Demands  11,136 
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(a) In respect of assignment of receivables from  
 2,500 

 

  25,000  20,000 

Courts.  The liability of the Group in respect of this disputes 

 

quantum of which is not currently ascertainable.

agreements and an amount of ` 1,602 lakh (2012 - ` 1,281 lakh) paid under such agreements has been charged to 

lease agreement with Shri DhanaLakshmi Sahakri Sakkari Karkhane Niyamit, Ramdurg for the lease of sugar factory 

Lease rentals of ` 770 Lakh (2012 - `

 

`  

(2012 - ` 14,238 Lakh) and are due:

` in lakh

Not later than one year  770 

 3,417  3,317 

 10,151 

32. In respect of subsidiary company, Coromandel, has recognised subsidy income as per the prevalent Nutrient Based 

` 10,884 lakh (2012 - `

accounted for the loss of ` 5,275 lakh and the same is included under ‘Other expenses’ (Refer note 25) for the 

 

`

34. During the year ended March 31, 2012, the Members of the subsidiary company, Coromandel pursuant to the 

buyers.

NOTES FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

` in lakh

IMITED 



`

` 42,423 lakh to the shareholders (out of this, debentures worth ` 26,573 lakh have 

been alloted to the Parent Company and has been eliminated in the Consolidated Financial Statements) by 

` 6,882 lakh was also transferred 

 

`

` 4,686 lakh debit (2012: `

Sugar Power Spirits
Neem & 

Corporate, 

Investments, 

Infrastructure 

Development & 

Others

India North America Europe Rest of the world
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

` 1,534 lakh (2012 - ` 1,467 lakh) 

` in lakh

 4,175  3,680  31  117 

Current service cost  428  341  -    1 

Interest Cost  1 

 288  228  (24)

 (662)  -    -   

 4,538  8  31 

Fair value of plan assets at end of the period  4,335  -    -   

Current service cost  428  341  -    1 

Interest Cost  1 

Expected return on plan assets  (346)  (306)  -    -   

 302  (24)

Past service cost  -    -    -    -   

Discount rate 8% 8%

Expected rate of planned assets 8%

Expected rate of salary increases 5 to 8%

*Nature and extent of investment details of the plan assets and Actual return on plan assets includes details of 

to the fair value of plan assets has not been disclosed. The details of experience adjustments arising on 

laws.

Annual Report 2012 - 13  



NOTES FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

year

` in lakh

(a) Revenue expenses on Research and Development included under various 
 827 

 (65)  (86)

 

Net Revenue expenses on Research and Development

` in lakh

Buy/ `

(i) Forward exchange contracts (net) 18.86 63.66 Sell 10,002 32,564 

 3.50 Sell 2,110 2,406 

543.74 431.70 Buy

(ii) ECB (Swaps) - EID * 5.00 5.00 Buy 2,488 2,488 

(iii) ECB (Swaps) - CIL * 80.00 70.00 Buy 43,440 35,616 

 *The swap contract has been entered into to hedge the currency and interest rate risks on the external 

commercial borrowings of the Company.

(c) The forward contracts have been entered into to hedge the purchase of raw materials and stock-in-trade and 

the related buyer’s credit and in certain cases the foreign currency trade receivables.

instrument or otherwise are given below:

IMITED 



NOTES FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

 

` 

 

` i

Trade payables USD 10.13 5,503 86.68 44,102

AED 5,022 4,510

EUR 0.21 147 - -

GBP 0.01 11 - -

PHP 0.12 1 - -

Advance to suppliers SEK - - 0.3 22

EUR - - 0.18 116

Trade receivables USD 12.06 6,544 - -

EUR 61 - -

Borrowings USD 16.46 4,825

EUR 1.11 770 - -

Silkroad Sugar Private Limited* India  -   - 50 -

Coromandel Getax Phosphates Pte Ltd., (CGPL) Singapore -  31.30 -  31.35 

Coromandel SQM India Private Limited (CSQMPL) India -  31.30 -  31.35 

Tunisia - -

* Became subsidiary during the year 2012-13
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

` 

  

` `

11,53,654 17,33,120 110.76 

Granted during the year -    -   245.60 

245.60  -    -   

Exercised during the year 2,65,810  4,64,276 78.57 

Cancelled during the year 2,47,502 

Lapsed during the year -   -    -    -   

6,40,342 203.66 11,53,654 

` in lakh

Risk Free Interest Rate 8% 8%

Expected Life 4 4

0.46% 0.46%

Expected Dividend Yield 400% 400%

IMITED 



NOTES FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

` in Lakh) (A)  31,270 

Number of equity shares of Re. 1 each outstanding at the beginning of the year 17,36,62,476 

2,65,810 4,64,276 

Add : Number of shares issued to PSIL Shareholders pursuant to merger 18,38,578 -

(a) Number of equity Shares of ` 17,57,66,864 17,36,62,476 

(b) Weighted Average number of Equity Shares 17,34,44,175 

(c) Diluted shares on account of issue of ESOP granted  -   

`

the year

17,36,83,161 

– Basic (`  18.03 

– Diluted (`  18.00 

 Murugappa Holdings Limited 

 i) Silkroad Sugar Private Limited (upto December 11, 2012)

 ii) Coromandel Getax Phosphates Pte Ltd. (CGPL)

 iii) Coromandel SQM India Pvt Limited (CSQM)

 1. Mr. Ravindra S Singhvi, Managing Director

 3. Mr. D.Kumaraswamy, Managing Director in Parrys Sugar Industries Limited

Annual Report 2012 - 13  



NOTES FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

` in lakh

Coromandel SQM India Pvt Limited (CSQM)  35 

Coromandel SQM India Pvt Limited (CSQM)  1,543  100 

Silkroad Sugar Private Limited (SRSPL)  -    3 

Silkroad Sugar Private Limited  -    65 

Coromandel SQM India Pvt Limited (CSQM)  -    25 

 2,168  -   

 25  -   

Silkroad Sugar Private Limited  -    11,250 

Coromandel SQM India Pvt Limited (CSQM)  -    300 

Silkroad Sugar Private Limited  (SRSPL)  -    245 

Coromandel SQM India Pvt Limited (CSQM)  41 

 -   

subsidiaries.

` 3,524 Lakh  

(2012 - `

(B)(iv).

` in lakh

 24,548 

Provision for compensated absences and others

IMITED 



NOTES FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

`

pursuant to the scheme of arrangement (Demerger). The corresponding amount has been credited to General 

Reserve.

` in lakh

 (2,472)  (2,472)

 3,073  3,073 

` in lakh

 47,605  10,675 

 -   

foreign subsidiaries

 12,205  34,702 

 (6,807)  -   

Less: On disposal of subsidiaries during the year - -

 47,605 

Less: Impairment of Investment in subsidiary
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

and results as included in the Consolidated Financial Statements, is given below:

` in lakh

 15,844  6,015 

 21,574  25,073 

Non-current assets  31,475  17,326 

Current assets  34,432  21,376 

 1,866 

Expenses for the period ended  10,830 

 (1,022)  (1,375)

 (1,051)  (1,375)

47. Mr.Ravindra S Singhvi, Managing Director resigned from the Company on April 10, 2013 and Mr.P.Gopalakrishnan 

has been appointed as the Manager by the Board of Directors, subject to the approval of the Shareholders.

    On behalf of the Board

     

       

April 30, 2013     

IMITED 
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